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JUVENILE ALCOHOL ABUSE

SATURDAY, JANUARY 28, 1978

U.S. SENATE,
SuBcomMMITTEE To INVESTIGATE
JUuvENILE DELINQUENCY OF THE
COMMITTEE ON THE J UDICIARY,
Des Moines Iowa,

The subcommittee met, pursuant to nctice, at 10:30 a.m., in the
Polk County Courthouse, Des Moines, Iowa, Hon. Johp. C. Culver
(chairman of the subcommittee) presiding.

Present: Senator Culver. 1

Als yiresent: Josephine Gittler, chief counsel and Howard Porter,
associave counsel. :

STATEMENT OF HON. JOHN C. CULVER, A U.S. SENATOR FROM IOWA

Senator CuLveRr. Inow call to order this hearing of the U.S. Senate
Subcommittee to Investigate Juvenile Delinquency te hear testimony
concerning alcohol use and abuse by our children and youth.

A number of recent studies have found that drinking by juveniles
has increased alarmingly in the past few years. In fact, the con-
sensus of the experts is that the most rapid rate of increase of alcohol-
ism is among young people and in recent years the age bracket has
increasingly gone down to the very young. A recent survey by the
National Institute of Alcoholism snd Alcohol Abuse reported that 93
percent of boys and 87 percent of girls in their senior year of high
school have been involved in some type of alcohol constmption.

This subcommittee has recognized from the beginning that juvenile
deliquency can only be properly understood within the context of a
wide range of social problems that contribute to it—broken homes,
child abuse, emotional illness, learning deficiencies, and other such
considerations. o :

Clearly, alcohol abuse has now become a major factor in disrupting
and damaging the lives of children and youth throughout the country.

The subcommittee is investigating the nature and extent of the prob-

lem and seeking to determine the services that are needed to deal with
it and those that are presently available and operating. In addition to
treatment and rehabilitation programs, the subcommittee has & vital
interest in ways and means of prevention.

The preyention theme permeates throughout all of the activities of
the subcommittee. Manifestly, I think prevention is the most sensible
and desirable solution to the various juvenile problems, ranging from
child abuse to chroni¢ truancy, that have some relationship to delin-
qlge,ncy. The point is particularly applicable to alcoholism and alcohol
abuse. o
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The subcommittee recognizes that the development of effective
alcoholism prevention programs targeted at children and youth poses
an enormously difficult and subtle problem. Yet, if effective pre-
vention programs can be devised, the gain to society in terms of con-
serving our most valuable resource—our children and youth—would
be inestimable. : ; ’

The subcormmittee is aware that Federal effort can go only so far in
combating such a problem as youth alcoholism. The Federal Govern-
ment can provide leadership, guidelines, some funding, and it can
focus national attention on what has become a major nationwide
problem. But the ultimate responsibility in this area evolves on the
State and particularly on the communities.

We have an impressive array of witnesses here today who can
speak knowledgeably about the incidence of juvenile alcoholism and
about programs of prevention, treatment, and rehabilitation.

I want to welcome all of you to the hearing this morning and to
convey the subcommittee’s sincere thanks for your participation.
In the interest of time, I would like to as}z the witnesses if they would
be good enougl& to for{ago presenting their opening statements so that
we may proceed directly to questions. . .

N atﬁr%lly your Wrib%ren statements will be reproduced in full in the
official record of the hearing and also in order to insure that your
views are fully reflected, I will order the record to remain open for an
additional 2 weeks so that each of you may submit supplemental
material for inclusion in the official record if you so desire.

I wonder if our first panel would be good enough to come forward
at this time? We have Mitchell Work, Dr. Stan Haugland, Dr. William
Jackson and Bob M. All of these witnesses are connected with various
alcoholism treatment centers here in the State of Iowa. The first
member of the panel is Mitchell Work, the executive director of
Alcoholism & Drug Abuse Services, Inc., and it is a pleasure to welcome
you here.

Mr. Work. Thank you. , .

Senator CurLver, I have gone through your statement and it ap-
pears to me that you have pulled together all the existing studies with
respect to juvenile alcohol abuse. Your statement indicates that
young people are drinking at an earlier age and are drinking more
heavily. Your statement also indicates that there are almost no treat-
ment or prevention services in Towa specifically targeted to juvenile
drug and alcohol abusers. Is that essentially a fair summary of your
statement? : . X

Mr. Work. Yes, Senator, that would be accurate. There is especially
a lack of juvenile alcoholism prevention and treatment programs in
Towa. . ;

Senator CuLver. Now, for our record, what is the extent of alcohol
use and abuse by adolescenis within the State of Iowa?

STATEMENT OF MITCHELL R. WORK, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, ALCO-

"HOLISM AND DRUG ABUS-§E SERVICES, INC., DES MOINES, IOWA *

Mr. Work. Immediately I think we run into a problem of not
having recent data to really reflect that. We go back to a statewide
survey by Dr. Carl Chambers who did a statewide survey. I—I;s esti-

1 See p. 39 for Mr. Work’s prepared stateraent.
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mates are that there are 17,000 juveniles; between the age of 14 and 17
years of age who were heavy drinkers. This is 8 1974 study, I believe.
I would just like to underscore the fact that there are 17,000 young
people in Towa who are on the verge of alcoholism. This to me consti.
tutes a major health problem and if this were another disease I am
certain.that we would immediately have Federal aid and State aid %o
address the problem. The Chamber’s study cited here is now several
years old and there has not been much Teaction to it. We've ignored
the problem. " _
Senator CurLver. To what do you attribute this increase in the use
of slcohol by young people?
_Mr. Work. Well, certainly the availability is a major factor. Alcohol
1s available even though we do have an established drinking age but it

“carininly is available to young people of any age. It is also cheap. I

would point out that those young people we see in our program are
continuing to use other drugs and frequently mixing them with alcohol.
We call this polydrug usage.

Another reason why alcohol consumption is increasing is that more
and more in the media—TV, radio—we hear messages that alcohol is
not only OK for people to use but it is expected if you are to be
successful and happy. '

If you turn on the television tonight, I would suggest you probably
will see several ads strongly encouraging the use of alcohol and other
drugs. In addition, young kids especially have an opportunity to
view their parents in a role modeling situation. Almost 100 percent cof
the adult population of this country is involved with some kind of
alcohol usage. Through the media, through the home, the kids are
getting the message that it’s OK to go ahead and use and become
mvolved in this dangerous substance. :

Senator CULVER. You noted in your statement that Polk County
Juvenile Probation contacted vou and requested assistance in dealing
with the adolescents involved in delinquent behavior who showed
signs of having an alcohol problem. Could you elaborate on that?

Mr. Work. Yes; I could. By the way, Mr. Gary Ventling is here
from that office, and we were contacted by them about the possibility
of providing outpatient services for juveniles who had come to the
attention of the juvenile justice system and who were involved with
drug or alcohol problems. The estimate that they gave to us was that
over 400 kids per year could make use of these services and currently
there are no services being offered in this particular area. '

Senator CuLver. You say 4007

Mr. Work. 470 was the figure that was given to me—kids needing
some kind of service, whether it be early intervention outpatient
services or assessment to see if there was an alcohol problem present.

Senator CurLver. What is the profile of the adolescent problem
drinker that you encounter to the extent that there is a common
denominator and background?

Mr. Work. Well, it is a very nondiscriminatory profile. Male and
female, we are seeing juveniles of both sexes drinking heavily. Further,
it does not seem to be isolated among economic groups. Young kids
from middle class, upper middle, lower and lower middle class seem
to be involved. It’s a relatively cheap substance and its accessible in
urban, suburban, and rural areas. Some of our programs at ADASI
are delivered in very small towns where there is not even a liquor




store, yet they-are having problems. I don’t think juvenile alcoholism
discriminates. We are seeing problems across the board.

Senator CuLvER. Is there usually a disfunctional family or broken
home associated with juvenile alcohol abuse?

Mr. Work. My personal belief is that any alcoholism problem has
roots in factors other than the substance itself. It can often be at-
tributed to family problems. You visited the ADASI residence this
morning and I think we indicated to you that many of our kids there
experience problems that relate back to the family. Also, I think, it’s
problem of self-identity and lacking a positive self-concept and in
many severe cases we find a succession of failures that young people
have had that makes the usage of alcohol very much of an attractive
alternative or a temporary escape. ,

Senator Curver. Now, of course, ADASI is providing the services
that we discussed with you this morning for these young people?

Mr. Work. Right, but only long term residential treatment to
juvenile males with alcohol abuse problems.

Senator CurLver. Such comparable facilities are virtually nonexist-
ent everywhere else, and there are none for women?

Mr. Work. Not to my knowledge. There will be some people on the
panel here who are involved with very fine services for juveniles on a
limited scale. .

Senator CuLver. Generally, in your view are there :*.quate
treatment programs for juvenile alcohol abusers in our Staw ¥

Mr. Wogk. No. I feel that there are not, given the data from the
assessment from recent studies, given the contacts that we have had
from the juvenile justice system, given the demand for services, I do
not feel we are providing even minimal services to the juvenile
alcoholic. Polk County has done a great deal towards supporting
alcoholism and drug abuse programing but primarily we are doing all
we can just to provide services for the adult alcohol problem.

Senator CurLver. What is needed in the way of programs here in
Towa for juvenile alcohol abusers? What specific kind of program do
you see the most crying need for?

Mr. Work. My first appeal is that we not utilize the bandaid ap-
proach. If we are going to address the problem, we should do it on a
continuum of care bases. This should include prevention, assessment,
detoxification, ocutpatient, residential, and aftercare services for
juveniles.

I very much appreciate your earlier remarks about prevention. We
are talking about a prevention need even at the preschool level. The
earliest reported usage in Towa is 6 years of age. We have to begin
prevention even before kids get into school to address prevention in
the family. We need detoxification program components for young
kids who are picked up who are intoxicated and then we need an
array of programs, outpatient, residential care, and some kind of
followup and aftercare.

Further we need to investigate the need for special services for
juvenile groups with unique problems. You have mentioned a very
important area, the juvenile female alcoholic. We are finding that
adolescent women have some unique needs and currently services for
that population are not available here. '

Senator CuLver. Gentlemen, I wonder if any of you would like to
be heard? As I indicated, in the interest of time, we will have your
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full statements inserted i .
enough to outline your 1?;; %%;gt?so.rd but perhaps you would be kind

ST;&(’)I;?}I&EIZ’.:II‘\TD 031;/[ ]égif\szI‘L]I).ZIIAM L. JACKSON, PRESIDENT OF THE
IGAL DIRECTOR, GORDON CHE '
ENCY CENTER, SIOUX CITY, TOWA * 04T DEFERD:

thiElI{'. JACII)CSbOIN. I am Dr. William‘J ackson. I would like to say that T

estima%)ro ]?"o ﬁr all of these studies are very conservative in ’;heir
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1 See p. 82 for Dr. T ackson’s prepared statement,




aftercare program which is from 1 to 2 years after theyv finish inpati
treatment and a very strong family %’rogram. Theyfamily pfg’;rgﬁ
we think is extremely vital to the success of our programi.

If, indeed, one doesn’t work with the families of these kids, then
you are going to have a very high failure rate and this is currently
one of the problems in virtually every facility available in the State
of Iowa, except for a couple of inpatient treatment centers. There
really isn’t a strong family for these kids to go back home to. We
have gone so far with some of our graduates to put them in foster
homes because we felt that returning them to their natural home
would be disastrous. They simply would not get support, in fact, they
probably would get a lot of negative feedback for having been through
treatment. Our family program involves having a family, or at least
one family member, live in for a week with the client and go through
everything except the school right with the client. They are even
subjected to a lot of the same disciplines that the client is. In addition
to that, they have 8 weeks that the client is an inpatient in the family
program. They have individual one-to-one sessions with the counselors
and a group session with other clients and families.

They will have a group of perhaps four families that will have
group therapy together 1 night a week. Besides that, they are also
included in ‘the 1- to 2-year aftercare program. In other words, the
client has 1 to 2 years of aftercare by himself, group, one-to-one, and
g%irgxﬁay aélc_lt’the family ha,ls theiir own group plus their group with the

y 80 1¥’s a very prolonged program. !
telé . a,bcéut L v b); in)cs. onged prog I don’t know what else to
. venator CULVER. You mentioned you opened in July.
]uvemlgs have yoi1 tﬁegﬁed during thi‘g timeE? July. How many

Ur. JAcksoNn. I think our total admissions are i
neighborhood of 35, perhaps up to 40 by now. somewhere in the

Senator CuLver. You probably haven’t had time to really sce the
success or failure of your program?

Dr. Jackson. We have had two juveniles that used alcohol again,
one of them was in our unit from one of the reformatories and he went
back to the reformatory. The other one tried drinking once, found out
that it didn’t work and since has stayed straight. The rest of our grad-
uates have stayed straight. Now, we have had s fair number split and
not complete the program and at the present time I can’t give you any
ggg% Sfatlstlcs on how many of those are staying straight but we know

eral are.

Senator CuLver. Dr. Jackson, all your funding is private, is that
co%ectg Abth ’

r. JACKSON. At the present time. We have an application in.
NIAAA for counselor salaries but we haven’t heard aﬁ?thing f)lnuzhi(ﬁ

Senator CuLver. Could you give us a breakdown of your funding
sources? -

Dr. Jackson. We were able to raise approximately $60,000 from the
the community through private contributions. We have borrowed
the rest, simply the board has backed up the notes and that’s where
1t stands right now. We are at the point right now where our referrals
are coming in at least from the surrounding areas, We are not getting

| in a whole lot from Iowa itself.
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Senator CuLver. What kind of communication do you have with
other agencies and treatment programs? I know that there is a tre-
mendous difference of opinion within the community, among individ-
uals who have dedicated their lives, to this general problem as to the
most effective approaches and means of treatment and prevention.
I am' curious as to what kind of formal communication you have
established between your program and say Mr. Work with ADASI

~ and the extent to which you have any kind of shared sessions as to

what you think is working and what isn’t working?

Dr. Jackson. I haven’t personally had any involvement with Mr.
Work’s group but with Dr. Haugland I have, and I have with the
Omaha Alcoholic Treatment Center, with several other inpatient
treatment centers in the Midwest. I think that just about everyone
in the State of Iowa is attacking the problem from a different point
of view and I think that ultimately we do have to get together and
share our experiences and our ideas. At the present time I think that
a lot of it is going to be pretty peripheral simply because we are all
doing different things and trying to analyze it. We patterned our pre-
gram after the AA model simply because I don’t think that anyone
can argue that that works best.

Senator CuLver. Dr. Jackson, what additional services are needed
n tlllle State for juvenile alcohol abusers? Do you have some thoughts
on that?

Dr. Jackson. Yes; I do. One would be that the Department of
Social Services has to find ways of getting kids who do not have in-
surance policies into treatment programs. That’s one of the areas
that have been blocked for Iowa residents so far. There have been a
few that have been able to come up with funding but not very many.
I think we need to start outpatient programs that are basically treat-
nient involved or treatment oriented but that are not inpstient,
groups but are daycare type centers. ' )

I think we need to establish within the school systems some sort of
groups for kids who have successfully become rehabilitated. They can
have a support group within their school system. I have very negative
feelings about anything that’s been tried to date as being a preventa-
tive. I think that probably is obviously the ultimate goal to find some
preventative treatment measure but at the present time nothing has
worked nearly as well as treatment. Prevention is not nearly as strong
as treatment, '

I think we will find some tools eventually and I think perhaps
gﬁtting encounter groups in schools would be one of the ways to start
that. .

Senator CuLver. But you ggree that the prevention emphasis is one
we have to address more seriously and imaginatively? ,

Dr. JacksoN. I don’t think there is any question about that. In
the first place it would cost you a pittance to prevent something as
oppesed to treating it.

Senator CuLvER. You did mention youhs e an education program
with the Sioux City school system. Could you briefly describe this
program? .

S
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' Dr. Jacksox. In our public high schools now each one of the schools
has what's called a police liason.officer and they have been able to set
up in at least two of the schools groups where the administration of
the school authorizes and promotes and provides space and time for
these kids who have gone through treatment or otherwise gotten
straight off of drugs to meet at least weekly for their own little group
just %ike an AA meeting. They support each other. At times they go
outside of their group and take a classmate who they sce heading
down the same road they went and say, “Hey, look, this is what I see
you doing.” _ N L o

Senator CurLver. You don’t find the more conven_tl‘onal educational
presentations effective? You don’t see the presentations where there
is more of a medical approach to drug and alcohol abuse as being a
very effective educational experience? - o

Dr. Jackson. It can be but I think basically, as we use it, we use it
much too late. We are putting it in junior high school now and we
ought to have it in third and fourth grade at least and probably a lot
younger than that. If it’s going to work, it has to start very early.

Senator CuLvER. That’s not being done as far as you know cur-
rently? . S o

Dr. Jackson. It’s not being done young enough. -

Senator CuLver. Dr. Stan Haugland, is the medical director of
Powell III, Towa Methodist Medical Center. Powell IIT is located

here in Des Moines. Dr. Haugland, would you be good enough to

briefly describe your facility for us? ;

STATEMENT OF DR. STAN HAUGLAND, MEDICAL DIRECTOR, POWELL
III, JOWA METHODIST MEDICAL CENTER, DES MOINES, IOWA *

Dr. Havaranp., We have several programs. We have a 40-bed
inpatient treatment center. This was established about 5 years ago.
Then we have a 16-couple - outpatient treatment center wherein
people live at home, come into treatment at night and then a strong
aftercare program that lasts up to about 2 years. Our treatment
approach, our staff is multidisciplinary o nature. = - -

That is to siy, we have people on the staff coming from many
disciplines of life for the healing arts and we use much the samme type
program that Dr. Jackson has presented to you so I won't go over
that a great deal. . _ o

We also are strongly AA oriented or the AA philosophy way of life
is the backbone, I would say, of our treatment. That's a little capsule
summary of the type of program we have. -

Senator CuLveR. In your statement I noficed you also, of course,
pointed to this upward turn in juvenile admissions to your pgrtlcula,g
facility and I wondered if you could give us your views on this trend?

Dr. Haveranp. We have noticed an ncreasing demand for our
services by the adolescent. I would say we noticed an upward swing
at least 13 years ago. Prior to 1% years ago I would say our admissions
approximated at about 4 percent in a year’s time. Since that time it has
doubled and we have had to put a stop order on admissions of adoles-
cents in order to limit the numbers coming in. We try to keep the
number of adolescents in our 40-ked inpatient unit to 5 at any given

time.

1'See p. 82 for Dr. Haugland’s prepared statement.
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I think that if we just let things go and not watch it, our place
would be filled with adolescents because that’s the big demand
currently. Now, part of the reason for that seems like the adolescents,
if you get too many of them at one time, you have a tendency to
lose control. You just can’t hire enough staff to keep the program
structure and I don’t feel that mixing them is the best idea either,
adolescents with adults, but we have the only private treatment
center in Des Moines and we simply felt we had to take them in and
galn some experience as to what’s going on.

We have had a waiting list for people trying to get in for 1% years.
:‘We turn them away. I would say we must turn away at least 25
percent of all people that want to get in under the age of 20. Some of
those we refer to Dr. Jackson’s facility. I would say prior to that
time we were sending many of our young people up to Minneapolis
where they have a number of well established adolescent treatment
centers. S : ’

Senator CuLver. Just what services do you feel are needed in the
State if we are to more effectively address this problem? Do you
just share what has been said about the prevention emphasis?

Dr. Havaranp. Yes; I do. I listened to Mitch’s testimony and I
don’t: believe more and more treatment centers is the answer. I
know that we-are going:to-have more adolescent treatment beds in
centers, simply because the pleas of those that are sick are that
powerful. In my opinion we can’t build enough treatment beds
to keep up with the increased demand. We simply cannot do that, so
some massive preventative—educational preventative—measure is
going to have to take place in my opinion to even start to break

even, which I don’t see is even possible within my lifetime, the magni~
tude of the problem is that great.

We need some research, of course, to look more at some of the causes
but I think through education and prevention starting way down in

.the very earliest of years is where our main efforts should be directed.

Senator Curver. This problem is growing and it appears to be
increasingly a global problem. I had occasion te visit with some people
from the Swedish Government who were involved in alcoholism treat-
ment programs. They were extremely disturbed about what they
had been experiencing within the last few years in Sweden where
children with serious drinking problems are as young as 12 years old.
When many children that young develop problems, the cost of
treatment programs have been extremely high. - ’

Dr. Haveranp. I would quote Richardson when he was Secre-
tary of HEW, and that’s going back a few years, even back at that
time he said alcoholism was our No. 1 health problem, and really, I
don’t think that too much was done about it but even back that far,
Norm Pawlewski in the State, he had information from the World
Health Organization and he said that all of the developing nations
felt it was their No. 1 health problem, the undeveloped or under-
developed simply we have no statistics or demographic data, so I
think it is our No. 1 health problem, in my opinion, no question about
1t. '

- People don’t get too alarmed about it. Everybody is doing some
drinking. We live in an era where we are looking for the easy, quick
solution. There is a pill to go to sleep, a pill to wake up, rather than
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work through some of those problems. It’s simpler to take a chemical *

to solve problems. . : T
Senator CuLvER. I remember this kind of cynical indifference to the
problem. I, as a student, had occasion to be traveling in Europe and

at that time you may remember Pierre Mendes-Frances, the Prime
Minister of France, was making a very serious effort to take on the
problem of alcoholism in France. He said it was their biggest problem
and this was 1954. He put signs up that said, ‘“Beware, wine kills
slowly,” and I remember one person wrote beneath that, “That’s
OK, I'm in no hurry.” : ; o

That was the kind of response in terms of cynicism that the pre-
vention program got. Now admittedly, he took on about the toughest

ground he could find in trying to talk about prevention. I think one

of the most constructive things that has been suggested here is to -

make sure that we get the educational program down to the lowest
possible level very early on when peer group pressures haven’t yet
started to assert themselves as much as they do later.
The last member of the panel is Bob M., a recovered alcoholic and
member of Alcoholics Anonymous. I wonder, Bob, if you would
briefly describe.the Alcoholic Anonymous treatment approach?

STATEMENT OF BOB M., A RECOVERED ALCOHOLI(".{1

‘Bob M. T would like to clarify one thing to start off with, Senator.
I do not in any manner, shape or form represent AA. I do work for
ADASI and Mr. Work happens to be my boss and if I didn’t know
better, I would think all four of us réad each other’s resumé on this
prevention deal. My feeling is we should start in the fifth grade. If
we should ever learn anything from Germany and Russia, start here.

You don’t start up here, you start down here. You don’t build a house

with a lath, you start with cement blocks. -

Senator CULVER. Russia has one of the biggest problems.

Bob M. Especially with milkmaids. Did you read that? They are
not producing milk because there is too many drunks. We in AA have
12 steps and 12 traditions and this is why AA works is because we
stick with them. Our program is built basically on tradition 11 which
reads, ““Our public relations policy is based on attraction rather than
promotion.” It’s just that simple. Now, the first treatment centers
were started, the first detoxification centers were started, when
Senator Hughes got involved in it. They were basically formed to
treat the alcobolic. Alcoholics Anonymous is an organization which,
to my notion, is the finest aftercare group, if you will, going in the
United States. ’ ' o

I would also like to state that it has been through the treatment
center such as ADASI which I happen to think is the best in the
country, Alcoholics Anonymous has grown. It has doubled. We are
at the present well over a million members. As to the juvenile program,
there was a study done in 1976 and this is fascinating. They came up
with the figure that 12 percent; 12 percent of all the students from the

9th through the 12th grades either had a serious alcoholic problem

or were in fact alcoholics.

That’s the way it always went with our programs. We get statistics.
We get figures. We get all these grandious policies and procedures.

1 See p. 90 for Bob M.'s prepared statement.
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examined that. directly- Bl Wit}f fﬁ“e Iour areas that have not beep
: ' | With. the juvenil 1 D ~

educational System, the schools, and t]he couft’ sjﬁgt'ertsls the parents,

T.would like to explain that statement. We identify these problem

what’s happening in the home. W ' :

w PP - We do not address what’s happen:
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P rorton but . ten to what these
Wigh % ﬁ; ml.) av§ to say with us and tc cooperate with them and work
enator CuLver. In that regard. B
th%t &rﬁln‘ected specifically a% yo{mgo Zic%%%ﬁié% haye H programs
Alotggn bl.ltvzlﬁsdics) fggtéhieclellz;ﬁ)ri Wi? do have 8 group that is called
thesmselves, thi dren of the alcoholic. As for the children
enator CurLver, i i
progrm? VE3 What have been the barriers to establishing such

upSWith the old problem.
enator CurLver. I would suggest here that the program Jackson

described of having people who have reformed as far as drinking -

pr;%bolgnll\?[ a’II"eh czzlcernec_l 80 to the schools might be utiliged.
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subcommittee work as. we try to develop the proper approach of the
role of the Federal Government that reflects more directly somie of the
concerns that you noted here and directions you have pointed out for

us. , , L
- Our next witness is Mary M. Mary, I am very happy to welcome

4

‘you here this morning. We appreciate your coming before our sub-

committee. Mary is a young person who has had some previous prob-

lems with alcohol and she has been kind enough to agree to testify

before thé.subcommittee because of her concerns about young people
like herself who find they have had an alcohol problem. I have assured
her that the press and television camera persons would not write
stories or take pictures which would reveal her identity.

Photographs and film shots may be taken from behind the witness
table and I ask that you respect and honor this request. I would like
to ask Josephine Gittler, our legal counsel, to ask you a few questions,
Mary, if it’s all right. . : :

Ms. GirrLer [Chief counsel]. Mary, how old are you now?

STATEMENT OF MARY M., A FORMER JUVENILE ALCOHOLIC

Mary M. Twenty-one.

Ms. Girrier. 1 understand that as a teenager you became an
alcoholic; is that right? . '
Mary M. Yes. . , ;

Ms. GirrLeEr. How old were you when you started drinking?

Mary M. Fifteen. ‘

Ms. Grrruer. What did you drink when you started drinking?

Mary M. Hard stuff, hard liquor. '

Ms. Grrrner. Did you drink alone or did you drink with class-
mates? h

Mary M. With classmates. , ’

Ms. GrrrrER. Where did you obtain the liquor that you and your
classmates drank? - .

‘MarY M. From older people.

Ms. Girruer. People that were above the legal age?

Mary M. That were legal age. -

Ms. Girrier. Why do you think you started drinking? .

Mary M. Experimentation, I wanted to see what it would feel like
to be drunk.

Ms. Grrruer. Did you drink heavily during your sophomore year
in high school? o ' '

Magry M. No. v
- Ms. Grrrner. Mary, when you went into your junior year in high
school, did you begin to drink more heavily?
- Mary M. Yes; on weekends, every Friday and Saturday night.

Ms. Grrrier. To the point where you would get drunk?

Mary M. Yes.

Ms. GirreeEr. What happened to your drinking patterns in your
senior year?

Mary M. They progressed to drinking during the week plus the
weekends and getting drunk every time I drank. o .

Ms. Grrruer. Did your mother realize you were drinking this

heavily?
Mary M. No.
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~ Ms. Grrrier. Did your teachers in your school?

‘Mary M. A few of them knew I had a problem. ;
- Ms. Girruer. Did any of your teachers try to assist you with that
problem? - v ‘ S o U L

Mary M. Yes; one of them. They made sn appointment with the
regional alcoholism center. , o ) ‘

Ms. Girreer. Did you go there? . .

- MaryM. Yes. - o ; ‘
Ms. GrrrrEr. What happened as a result of your going there?
Mary M. Nothing. I didn’t want the help at that time.

‘Ms. GirrLer. What effect did all this drinking during the week as
well as on weekends have on you? N . :

Mary M. I became very depressed. ; :

Ms. GirTrER. So then during your senior year in high school you
were actually hospitalized, were you not? ‘

Mary M. Yes. :

Ms. GrrrLer. What precipitated that hospitalization? |
" Maxy M. I went out on a weekend drunk. |

Ms. GirrLer. And got so drunk that—— ‘

Mary M. And got so drunk that I was hospitalized. .

Ms. GrrrLer. What kind of treatment did you receive in the
hospital where you were taken? :

Mary M. Alcoholism wasn’t even touched on. They gave me pills to
keep me happy and I left there with two prescriptions for a year but
as to the alcoholism, it wasn’t even touched on. _

Ms. GiTTLER. After you got out of the hospital, did you go to a
shelter house? o . ‘

Mary M. Yes, I stayed at a shelter house for a week and there again
the alcoholism wasn’t touched on. They thought my main problem
was a conflict between my mother and me and if we got that worked
out the alcohol would disappear. v

Ms. GirTLER. After you graduated from high school, did you con-
tinue to drink this heavily? ‘

‘Mary M. Yes. ,

Ms. GirriEr. Eventually you were admitted to Powell III that
we have heard testimony about? A
" Mary M. Yes. ’

Ms. GrrrLeEr. What precipitated your admission there?

Mary M. I went out one night and got drunk and hit my bottom,
my low point, and decided I didn’t like myself and so I attempted
suicide and I was adraitted to Powell IIT on the advice of my sister.

Ms. GirrLeEr. How old were you then?

Mary M. Twenty-one. ‘
Ms. GirrLER. What kind of treatment did you receive at Powell TII?

Mary M. They made me take an honest look at myself and made

~ 'me realize that T am an alcoholic and that I am powerless over alcohol.

Ms. Girrrer. How long ago did you leave Powell III?
Mary M. Last April. : ‘
Ms. GrrrLER. Since then have you had any kind of drinking

problem? ‘
Mary M. No. "
Ms. GirrrER. You haven’t been drinking since then?

Mary M. No.
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Ms. Grrrier. Looking back on it, what do you think were the
causes of your problem? | o L

Mary M. T think-it’s hereditary..I came from an alcoholic family.
My father is an alcoholic and I-have three alcoholic brothers and an
alcoholic sister. " ; ' :

Ms. Girruer. One of the things that strikes me is that this problem
really started when you were 15 and very few people seemed to have
realized how much of a problem-it.was. How do you explain that?

Mary M. I managed to cover it up pretty good. I managed to go
to school every day and to work almost every day. It was just toward
the last that.]l started missing work more frequently.

‘Ms. Grrruer. How typical is  your case? For example, in your
high school class, can you give us any estimates of how many of your
fellow students drank heavily? : -

Mary M. Out of a class of 85, I would say about a third of them
were heavy drinkers. :

Ms. Grrrner. Where is the:town where this was all taking place?
Is it an urban area? "

Mary M. Small town, 2,800. . .

Ms?. GrrTLER. So this isn’t just a problem that occurs in large urban
areas? ’ '

Mary M. No.

Ms. Grrrner. Now, the other thing that I think is striking about
your testimony is that you weren’t really able to get too much in the
way of assistance with your problem until you went to Powell III
and I wonder what your feelings are about what kind of services
exist in the State for juvenile alcohol abusers and what we need?

MAary M. There aren’t very many. I think there need to be more
treatment centers and more like halfway houses for aftercare. Ju-
veniles are released from treatment centers and are sent back to the
same playgrounds and the same playmates and they are soon back
to drinking.

Ms. Grrrier. Do you have any other thoughts about what we
could do to cope more effectively with the problem of teenage drinking?

Mary M. Better educate people and, I think, if you changed the
legal age back to 21 it wouldn’t be so available and it would be harder
for the teenagers to get ahold of. '

Ms. Grrrrer. Mary, what are you doing now?

ﬁ\{IAlRY M. I’'m working and this March I’'m going to go to nursing
school.

Ms. Girrner. Thank you very much.

Senator CuLvER. Mary, I certainly want to thank you very much
for cooperating with us and helping us here with this hearing. I
wondered, you heard perhaps some of the others talk about the need,
to give more attention to prevention and you mentioned that one way

- may be educational programs in the schools. Do you have any more

specific thoughts on that? Everyone thinks about a movie and bringing
a doctor in and having a lecture. Does anyone else have any better
ideas? We are anxious to have them flood the witness stand with
imaginative, creative proposals. I wonder what you had in mind?

Mary M. A course in high school and junior high.

Senator CuLvER. You mean we should have health courses dealing
with hygiene, sex education, and nutrition which specifically goes
into the affects upon the body of excessive drinking?
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Mary M. Yes. - .~ . = oL . S
Senator CuLver. I.wondered if T understood you _correctly when
you described what happens when people leave the residential centers.

As you properly point out, even when they are quite successful in
straightening people out they return to an environment that really
is so unhealthy and gives rise to a lot of their unhappiness and frustra~
tczli“on which leads to their looking for relief and escape in alcohol and
rugs. | T o

When they leave a residential center, obviously there are inde-
pendent living opportunities that could be subsidized in some way,
but how would you suggesting that we avoid the problem of sending
them back into an unhealthy environment? , REERE :
“"Mary M. Send them to halfway houses where there is a somewhat
structured system and where there are other teenagers. o

Senator CuLver. For like 6 months or more extended periods, too?

Many M. Yes, 6 months to 1 year.

Senator CuLvEr. Would you suggest one where everyone of the
residents has this kind of problem in cormon or, do you think per-
haps it would be better to have a mix, or do you think that makes
very little difference. L ’
 Mary M. I think a halfway house that was just mainly connected
with alcohol and drug abuse. ;o .

Senator CuLver: And the people really essentially at the same
stage of rehabilitation or reform? v E o

MAry M. Yes.. , . - -

Senator Curver. Well, I want te thank you very much again,
Mary, for helping us and the best of luck to you.

Mary M. Thank you.

Senstor CuLver. [-want to compliment you very much, too, and
commend you for your own personal character and being on top of
this problem. It’s an inspiration to many people.. ' v

Next we have a panel. If those on that second panel weuld be good
enough to come to the witness table, Dr. Benton accompenied by,
Mary Hayes and David Wright and John Tapscott. This panel, of
course, consists of individuals whe have some expertise with Tespect
to the prevention of juvenile alcoholism as opposed to its treatment
and, as you have observed and as you have heard earlier this morning,
this has been a very strong theme. o

The first member of the panel is Robert Benton who is the State
superintendent of the Iowa Department-of Public Instruction. I
understand, Dr. Benton, that with you today are Mary Hayes and
David Wright, who are alcohol and drug specialists within your
department? , ' . :

Dr. Bexrton. That’s right. A

Senator CULVER. In your statement, Dr. Benton, you stressed the
need for prevention and education programs. What is your feeling
for our record as to why this approach should be emphasized? '

STATEMENT OF DR. ROBERT D. BENTON, SUPERINTENDENT, I0WA
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION, DES MOINES, IOWA *

Dr. Benron. It seems to me there are several things that have
‘happened in our society in recent years that kind of puts this thing

1 §ee p. 92 for Dr. Benton’s prepared statement.
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i - focus. You can do all kinds of things in society but people
;%fl? 1312?111)16; f’({Tou can tell them that cigaret smoking 1s exftremelly
dangerous to them and yet I'm told that the actual number of Ffeop 3
who smoke in this country has increased, so you are really kn{_d of aqz
with 2 dilemma here. Do you inundate people with a lot of sclentldc
information and knowledge? I think the information is, you can do
it’s not overly effective. ‘
thaii’:ﬁ:i; SWhen peop}{e are really willing to understand the ﬁroblem
and then make those kinds of decisions that are going to aqr)e bzi,n
impact on their lives, either positive or negative, that you prota dy
have some type of response that’s productive. I think from t}if S a?h-
oint of education particularly, it is important that they do %ve 3
owledge and understanding. Probably you have got to go teyonf
that in terms of helping young people particularly, build somﬁ_ ype od
a concept or perspective in this whole area of decisionmaking an
things. _ )
th%s[?)vgygis t?lfey regact to peer pressures? How do they react t;okzh.el
other society pressures? How do we as adults if we go toha (ch t%ll
party react to these things? These are all thoughts I have ha to_nd te
thing but we have gone into it in a preventative. way. We have hpe 0
go into it in a preventative way. We don’t contend that in ii is Izar-
ticular point in time tha,ti)z ever{thﬁng P;'lle)d in the educational system
.cessful. Tt obviously hasn’t been. _ _
h&%&eilgsgcgﬁ; lll)een able to s};ratch the surface in the educat,lolllal
areas. I would like to respond to another aspect of this particu atr
question. I don’t think it’s either a preventative program or ?utrea, ;?
ment program. I think the point has to be made that regar essfo1
how successful your preventative programs may be, howhsucciisolsle
your treatment programs may be, we are still going tof ave e
two needs in our society. It seems to me that that’s kind of an impor
ant concept so I don’t want to put preventative programs versui
treatment programs Or treatment versus preventative prograi)nlas.
think that’s not very productive as we take a look at these pé’.o elrns.
" Woe need to try to do the best job we can in the preve_xitaf 1ve30 w a%y
and educational way and hope that there will be less people for rﬁa, -
ment. No matter how much you stress the treatment pr%gra,m, ozv
successful you might be, there is going to be'the need for the prevent-
ative program because it does fall into a continuum. k
Senator CuLver. Now, I notice that in your statement 1})701}11 xinefnl
tioned that you think the Federal Government can perhaps be g_ P u1
in meking available some funds to try +o get this kind of educa 1onat
offort introduced at an earlier level, elementary school. Is your curren
program pretty much aimed at the high scht??ols? What age group
: ' ntion education program aim at?
do%r?lﬁzgzzﬁ Mary, would yoll)l want to comment on that and Dave?
ually, they deal with it ' more. . »
Acltfls. %[T’AYEg T would be happy te respond to that. hens
Senator CuLver. Why don’t you just describe the cﬁon.;pre ensive
program that you developed within the Iowa Department?
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STATEMENT OF MARY HAYES, ALCOHOL AND DRUG-. SPECIALIST,

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTIOR, DES MOINES, IOWA

Ms. Havgs. A direct answer, it’s a K through 12 program. But first
of all I would like to say that we believe that there are things that
schools and communities can do which will reduce the abusive use.
We believe that we can do some preventing in terms of the number
of people that have problems with alcohol abuse. We believe that
schocls and communities can provide students with knowledge and
skills to enable them to make responsible decisions about their own
alcohol use and whatever lifestyle they choose. ,

Our program specifically recommends that alcohol programs help
students understand human behavior in general, especially regarding
substance abuse and nonuse. We also recommend that schools help
students develop personal skills for making responsible decisions.
Schools can help students make factual information relevant to their
lives. We think we have given kids factual information for many years
but that somehow or another it really doesn’t transfer.

What do I do when I’m with a bunch of kids and somebody has a
joint or & six-pack? We believe that schools can help them develop
interpersonal skills for carrglng out the things they want to do. For
instance, we want them to know how to make friends, how to talk to
other people, but more than that, how to say to their peers, ‘“Hey, in
my life I would rather not do this right now,” and we think that we
need to reinforce the individual’s right to control their own life.

Fourth, that schools will provide for young people’s needs for mental
and emotional health. In transferring this into what happens in a
school program, there are four areas. We think there has to be class-
room experiences; teachers presenting 7 .ctual information and students
learning to apply decisionmaking skills. The second area in the school
has to be'services, what kinds of things do schools do to intervene and
how do. they refer kids to help and what kind of followup do they do
when they come back into school. .

I think one of the earlier persons mentioned how schools and people
treat young people when they come back. The third part we think is
equally important and that is the school environment, what kinds of
things do the schools, the teachers, the grading system, the scheduling
do which enhances students’ self concepts and feelings of usefulness,
acceptance, and power. ,

The fourth part, includes school administrative support for alcohol
education, such as helping teachers get inservice training, developing
some positive school policies, and working with the community in
some cooperative programs. We have to present to you as part of the
material a curriculum guide called alcohol and other drugs which
Dave and I have worked on for the last couple of years. This guide is
K through 12. (See page 127 for text of guide.) o
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It’s based on six major outcomes: human behavior, scientific facts,
consequences, prevention, alternatives, and decisionmaking. That
doesn’t mean just what do I do if I have too much to drink, that’s
talking about family and social, prevention, that’s not that it’s some-
body else’s job, it’s my role, tog, to do something about that and a very
important part is alternative and decisionmaking. :

Our program is divided into four grade-level sections and for -each
of these we have specific outcomes which relate to the developmental
level of those students. We deal with kindergartners on the kinds of
things they understand, dealing with feelings, moral reasoning and
the same then for junior-high or senior high.

Senator CuLver. Mary, are these programs that are now actively
being conducted? : :

Ms. Hayes. We distributed these guides to all superintendents
and all principals this last fall and during October and November
conducted workshops to introduce schools to this. We contacted 700
.teachers. The concern is, however, that we simply .introduced them
to this idea, the idea that is beyond factual information. It was very,
very well received and as we may bring up later on, the problem is
they do not feel that they have the skills to carry it out. That’s
where we need.some funding and some assistance.

Senator CuLveRr. In terms of just counselors?

- Ms. Hayes. No; classroom teachers. You see, we are talking
about putting factual information together and helping kids relate
that to their lives and that has to be done throughout the school
day. That has to be all teachers helping kids use these kinds of skills.

Senator CuLver. And the State department doesn’t really have
an:{l power to require this to be adopted in the curriculum, is that
right? -

ng. Hayes. That’s right. “¢’s in our State code.

Mr. Wriear. We don’t have the power to mandate that that
curriculum be implemented. What it is is it’s a resource guide that we
are suggesting as a model program for alcohol and drug abuse
prevention. ‘

Senator CuLver. How would this work? Take the kindergarten
year, would you equip the kindergarten teacher or would a separate
1nstruction person come in-and how often?

Ms. Haves. Yes. At the kindergarten level it would be the class-
room teacher. i ‘

Senator CuLveR. The one they see every day? o

Ms. Havyes. The one they see every day because part of the mes-
sage is factual information which at a primary level deals with

. poisons, safety rules relating to health people and also, how do I
-deal with my feelings, my behavior snd how do I solve situations,
what do I do when I want to beat up on somebody else, and the
classroom teacher needs the methods for helping kids learn these
kinds of skills. It’s the same all the way through senior high. However,
at high school levels you could find these kinds of programs in related
subject areas but we think the science teacher needs to know how to
do this as well as the math or health teacher.

Senator CuLvER. Is it my understanding that you are trying to
raise the consciousness level in all the disciplines and all the instructors?
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Ms. Haves. Excuse me. It has to be this way. I mentioned the
school environment. If you . have one classroom teacher presenting
these things and helping students make decisions and being in control
of their life and all of the rest of the teachers being very restrictive,
then we aren’t getting very far.

Senator CuLver. It has been said that the experience with many
drug education programs in the schools has been somewhat negative.
I mean, arguably it has aroused interest and pressure toward experi-
mentation rather than discouraging drug use. Would you care to
comment on that?

Dr. Benton. Well, there is that argument. That’s what the sex
education opponents were saying, that really, we were going to try to
teach sex. I have a feeling that teenagers, and I remember my own
teen years and I think most here do, they are years of uncertainty
and wanting to experiment. You have to kind of come back to this
issue of the individual kind of being in charge of his own will and willing
to do these things. ‘

Senator CuLveR. How are you evaluating? How confident are you
of qualitative evaluation?

STATEMENT OF DAVID WRIGHT, ALCOHOL AND DRUG SPECIALIST,
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION, DES MOINES, IOWA

- Mr. Wrrgnt. I would like to express some facts, some data about
that issue. One thing that we have learned in Towa is that when we
surveyed schools in Iowa, less than 10 percent of the school districts
have attempted to do any type of evaluation of alcohol and drug
education programs. Now, that’s not a bad reflection on the schools
particularly because they really aren’t required to do a curricular
evaluation of alcohol and drug education. It takes a lot of time and a
lot of money for them to try to do their evaluation.

Senator CuLVER. Are they required to do evaluations in the other
disciplines? How can you be a good teacher and not do it? ‘

Mr. WrigaT. It’s really in our system in the State that it is a local
board responsibility to make that request of curriculum in the dis-
tricts. That’s how it operates. We are having a difficult time estab-
lishing the program, the alcohol and/or alcohol and drug education
model we are advocating. It becomes even more of a super sales job to
cell the school district on evaluating on a short-term basis or long-
term basis on what they are doing with that program. Now, that’s
the condition. We are moving into some evaluation stuff here in Towa
with our program. ‘

I want to talk, though, directly at some of the things that have been

shown and demonstrated through drug education programs. Now, -

there is a whole resource packet that is available to the Federal
Government. It has been published by the Project Pyramid. It’s called
grir(rllary Prevention Research Preliminary Review of Program Impact
tudies. ' , : :
In that report what they are looking at is the direct relationship
between program efforts and impact on students. What was in that
report and some of the other reports and studies that I have come
across in the last few years, is that 40 of the studies that.they reviewed
had some impact measurés, some measure of specific substance be-
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havior. Of those 40 studies, the programs that had a prevention edu-
cation approach like we are advocating were fairly effective. However,
over 75 percent of the programs that use this new approach to sub-

- stance abuse prevention showed positive impacts on one or more of the

specific behaviors.

They also reflect that 29 percent of them did not show positive but
had negative results on impact measures, but it's a 75 to 25 relation-
ship. Seventy-five percent positive, 25 percent negative. A lot of those
studies had some methodology problems, so there are some questions
still there, but when they looked at the programs that were pretty
much the traditional school program of information presentation, a
teacher-centered classroom, the effects were 46 percent positive and
46 Ipercent negative with a remainder undetermined. '

’s hard to determine whether it was positive or negative. The
overall pattern of those studies, though, indicates that a multi-
dimensional program like we are advocating that does the job with
blending the affective development with the cognitive development
of the kids can be effective in preventing alcohol and drug abuse.
Regardless of whether we talk about alcohol or drug abuse, those
programing things that are effectively oriented have a tremendous
effect and documented effect on facilitating the affective growth of kids.

In other words, their mental and social health. It also had a tre-
mendous effect on improving the kids’ school performance and also
in reducing dysfunctional behaviors of other types: juvenile delin-
quency, dropouts, this type of problem. The issue for me is really not
whether the program is one that reduces significantly some measure of
alcohol or drug abuse but what it does pay off in terms of ah overall
eflect on young people’s mental, emotional, and social health.

We are stuck in a bind because we have the critics you just men-
tioned that pick out a few studies here and there that show negative
effects and say that is the fault of substance programs. That is the
traditional programs. There really are programs that are having good
effects but the really difficult thing for us is tHat we have to prove to
the critics that something bad didn’t happen because of our programs
and to match those programs with treatment effects; that the school
efforts influenced substance behaviors either at the end of 1 week or at
the end of 10 years. This evaluation is going to cost some money
and prevention.programs are not funded to do evaluation or research.

They are funded to provide a service and consequently we need to
have some more money, need to have some more staff time, and we
need to have some time to live in our society and we need some time to
demonstrate program effects.

Senator CuLver. I understand that this program was introduced
last fall for the first time, that some 60 percent of the school districts
have voluntarily tried to implement it in part; is that correct?

Ms. Havms. These are people who were interested, who attended
the workshop. We do not know whether they implemented programs,
We are in the process of preparing some kind of evaluation in April
to determine this and we also propose—in the following year, next
zlclhool year—to work in some field test sites and directly impleinent

em.

Senator Curver. How about the other States? How progressive
and far advanced do you think that this type of initiative is from a
national perspective? Are there many States that are further along
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than this? It sounds to me as if you have a very creative concept here,
at least you want to implement one. :

Dr. Benton. Frankly, I'm not sure I know and I don’t know
whether these two do either. I know that most of the States—I

meet with the chiefs of the other State depsartments periodically.

I know that this is an area of real concern and my guess would be
that they are-stru%gling as we have struggled. It hasn’t been just an
educational struggle. | Co

Senator CurLver. But this isn’t . broiler plate off of somebody
else’s model or anything and I wondered how many other States are
using it. ,‘ ; : B

Mgc Hayms. We think we have an unusual model and we think
it’s a workable model for preventing substance abuse. There are some
States that have some well developed educational programs, com-
prehensive health programs, that are no doubt in some of these docu-
ments. We feel that our model addresses the total educational system
because, regardless of the subject matter ares, whether it’s alcohol or
environment or whatever, students still need these process skills to
act toward substances as citizens. ' :

Dr. Benron. You may be interested, Senator, to know that as
an outcome of this, and I didn’t go for it this time, the staff did
recomimend that we get involved in the total comprehensive health
education area and that’s one of the areas that we do plan to move
into. You sre familiar with the Federal legislation on nutrition
education. I was in Washington consulting with some of the rules on
that nutrition education thing and we have established a task force
here in Iowa to dsal with that. _ .

That’s where I’m coming from in a %eneral way; we could piecemeal
these things. That’s all very fine but I would like to go the next step
in trying to address the next issue of comprehensive health education
problems in the schools of Towa. These are very important bits and
pieces and parts. They are more than bits and pieces. They are
very important parts, but the whole comprehensive health education
has not been addressed adequately in this State and that is one of the
initiatives we plan to get going. .

You agled “earlier or posed the question, what can the Federal
Government do. T guess being a States’ person I always feel the
Federal Government is a bit too prescriptive but I must admit that
the Federal Government in the various educational programs at least
can provide some kind of incentives, seed money, whatever you want
to call it, getting these programs off the ground.

We do sometimes have trouble translating that to State support.
"This brings me to the concept really that if the Federal Government
wants to make a comprehensive move in this area, make it, but don’t
get in and get out. It’s a long-range circumstance and I think the
Federal Government has a role to play, if not the dominant role, at
least a role, but I hope that if they get into it that they are willing to
stick in the ballgame because it isn’t a problem that’s going to be
solved in 1 or 2 years. . ) _

Senator Curver. You mentioned in your statement specifically
making funding available from the Federal Government for tramning
of school personnel, slementary school counseling, and early interven-
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. . . 1
:on proerams. Is that your list of specifics? What is the current aval
: ;filllit?y 'ogf'reither State gr Federal funding for such programs? Foderal
Mz, WrieaT. Just pick them up one by one. We have‘n% edera
dollars in our program in substance education. We train teachers onta
shoestring, and that’s basically our predicament. We will operate
training on the State level on a very tight budget. However, Wek gxrg
talking about a larger, very much larger, training or_retra,mnﬁg in
_of process with all the teachers in the State to deal with the e Fective
growth of children and how to foster that in the classroom.
That’s going to cost a lob .of money and we can use mcenﬁlvei; gs
Dr. Benton said. The Federal Government would be very well ofi to
do that. _ N
“Banron. I have the feeling that the Federal dollars, and they
are? al,‘hxfgs limited, the Federal dollars channeled into that aTreah mfhg
be as productive.as anything. That is one of the issues. I t 11}1:l i
needs to be.pointed out here that very frankly, the dollars we fazwe
used haven’t come from m}}lr ’1bud_geb as much as they have come irom
: ivision of Alcoholism.
th%eslfgsgr%rv}wmz. You have received money from the Department
Abuse?
of ]S)I;P%?BIE:SON. Not in our agency but there has been some State
money here. The point being that the alcohol and substa,ncedabuse
State agency has been very cooperative and we have worked very
cooperatively with them. We have had interagency subcontractsNEn
this area; that’s basically where our dollars have come from.ﬂl_ y
State carries Dave's salary but that’s all the State has ‘bee%l W, ullag
to put in the end of it. Mary has been with my staff thl;oug _a sub-
contract. I'm not totally familiar with everything that’s going on.
You have s witness later on here, I think, who will be able to nglv;e
you some information on the new lists of the statewide basis. The
Governor has had a task force working and that was one of the 1ssues
that came out with the recomrr_lendatlon of about $200,01O% in oui
agency. That, very frankly, is in the pohtl?&l arens and km_nqt
very sure where it’s going to go. The point I'm trying to maxe 11 i
hasn’t been a segmented effort in cther agencies and our agency has

ing to work with other agencies on this issue.
beﬁr?r%%%am‘?vl would like to go ahead with that elementary coun-

iness. Very few of our schools in the State of Jowa have
Zilagegga?ry counselbczrs and that’s one of the positions that’s %tdoug
when school dollars start going down, when the total sohpplh udge
for a district goes down. Elementary school counselors, if f% ey are
given the opportunity to counsel the elementary age your};g?E ers% ﬁre
very effective in early intervention in problems with kids be orea ;i ey
further digress down the road to other more significant or oveli; yi-
functional behaviors and I don’t think that’s an unwise 1mgas mﬁnd.
Senator CULVER. Your statement as well as others that we fwe1 a
today indicates that one significant cause of juvenile alcohol pro’t:3 l;3;1113{
is a general cultural tolerance of drinking. Of what value (iilo 3701}1l 'ldmn
these educational prevention programs are In the schools when ¢ i ll'le !
are surrounded by a society which so readily accepts and uses alcoho
often in abusive ways? I guess that the only hope is to g(iat a ﬁleW
generation that has different attitudes and value systems an Il)ler aps
they can work effectively on their parents in this area as they have mn

other areas of public policy.
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- Ms. Havyss. There are two aspects of our program that deal with
that. One is the skill to make some educated decisions and to rein-
force students for looking at their social environment and for analyz-
ing features of that envirenment which influence their decisions.

. The second emphasis in our program is alternatives. That is to very
clearly help students develop leisure time skills, job skills, and
other ways of meeting needs. There is statistical evidence that young
people who have considered alternatives are less likely to choose
situations where alcohol and drugs are used. I think those are two
very powerful parts that will counter what you have mentioned.

Mr. WricHT. I think there is another thing we are trying to do with
the school districts that we work with. We say to the school and
community that the school is one institution in that community, that
it can help deal with some of the problems but the community has to
own some of those problems. What we are suggesting, and it’s backed
up by parent data, is that parents want and need parent education
to deal with alcoh¢: and drugs and the rest of the shopping list of
youth and social problems. :

They want help in helping their kids deal with developmental
problems and that’s something we are saying when we go into a school
district. We say ‘“Look, we will help set up a school program. We have
a package here that you can work with but please also address the
needs of the parents.” -

Dr. Benron. The National PTA, as you are probably well aware,
has a real thrust in parenting. That’s a broad, general term but it’s
the thrust. Instead of PTA trying to zero in on the kid, it’s finally
seeing that parent-teacher type of thing. The parent does have some
problems and responsibilities here and it’s kind of a major thrust.
It’s one that I am told, I haven’t been that close to-it, is starting to
have some productive results. ' ;

Senator CurLvER. I didn’t mean to neglect you, Mr. Tapscott. We
have another member of our panel, John Tapscott, the executive
director of the Des Moines National Council on Alcoholism. John, I
understand that the council has received a grant to formulate an
alcohol abuse prevention program to be located in selected Des Moines
schools. Could you briefly describe this program for us?

STATEMENT OF JOHN TAPSCOTT, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, NATIONAL
COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM, DES MOINES AREA, DES MOINES, IOWA *

Mr. Taprscort. Well, because of the limited resources we have asked
the board of supervisors, and since the board of supervisors do fund
part of our employee assistance program that deals with 51,000 em-
ployees in this community, we asked for an additional grant beginning
in school year 197879 to do a pilot project in three community schools
from kindergarten through 6. The model that would be used, of course,
is & similar model that the Department of Public Instruction has given
our inschool educator. ' ’ : R

We have an educator who spends most of her time in schools with
teachers, nurses, and counselors and giving school presentations, PTA
presentations, et cetera. The kindergarten through 6 model that we
will be using will be identifying the students of chemicaily dependent

1See p. 278 for Mr. Tapscott’'s prepared statement.
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parents. There are criteria that the National Council on Alcoholism
devised to use for teachers who are trained, to qualify in the area par-
ticularly of alcoholism and drug abuse, in identifying the child from a
chemically substance abused home, particularly alcohol, because of the
behavior and emotional problems that the child brings with him/her.
Specifically speaking to alcoholism being a family disease, many
times we see the juvenile referred to us by the school as the dysfunc-
tional family member. In reality, 90 percent of all alcohol and other
drug-related cases show a marked deterioration in family relationships
and that not one but all of the family members are dysfunctional.
This is a pilot project in' conjunction with the program that we
already have, a project called the student assistance program.

Senator Curver. Could you explain the.student.assistance program?

Mr. Tarscorr. We alsc have a student assistance program at one
of the private schools here for a pilot project that -we are looking at
and that is in its infancy. It’s only 2 months old. We are getting those
students referred to us who have been suspended from school for
behavioral problems and we are finding that 77 percent of those are
chemically related. Eighty-four percent are females, of which 80
percent have chemical dependencies. That’s a frightening number.

It’s early. The program is only 2 months into existence but never-
theless we are also finding that those individuals who are coming, who
‘hawve behavioral problems have an alcoholic parent or parents in the
home and, if I might, just one of the things that disturbs us, Senator,

-is in the area of prevention specifically versus treatment.

We certainly would not want to see and we don’t advocate trans-
ferring or shifting money from treatment to prevention but I think
when we look at the overall figures of the National Institute of Alcohol
and Alcohol Abuse last year funding $52 million for treatment and
$3 million for prevention, or when you take all of the alcoholism pro-

rams in the United States, $237 million for treatment and $12 mil-
ion for prevention in the 50 States.

Senator Curnver. Excuse me. What were those figures again?

Mr. Tapscorr. $237 million for treatment, $12 million for

prevention. .
Senator CuLvEr. Is that tatal expenditures on all levels of govern-

ment, private and public?

Mr. Taescorr. Private and public, all levels of expenditures relative
to alcoholism, use, abuse, treatment, and prevention, and when we
consider that in a State like Iowa we had $350 million of alcohol sales
in one form or another, that we just simply do not and are not dealing
with-the problem. I think one of the things, and I came here specifically
taday hoping that we might get some recommendations as we have in
our ‘written testimony, but I think many of the things we have talked

about today would be redundant. I would like to specifically go away
today with some feeling that maybe we do address some issues and 1t
was touched on briefly this morning, and that’s the issue of the adver-
tisement of alcoholic beverages on television. ,

they reflect, first of all,

These are prime time commercials and
stereotypes but they unrealistically distort the truth by equating the

alcohol consumption with friendship, with fun, with popularity, and
positive other good feelings that have nothing to do with alcohol
use. I think that’s something that hopefully your committee would
address itself to because I think that’s a starting place.
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representatives of these citizens and when priority items are set
particularly in the area of alcoholism, it’s at a lower level.

Senator CurLveRr. I happen to be quite prominently involved in the
effort to stop the production of B—1 bombers:

Mr. Tarscort. Congratulations.

Senator CuLver. Well, I'm still at it.” We will be working on it
again because it dies.hard, because the supporters are well organized.

Dr. BenTon. Give us just a fraction of what has been spent.

Senator Curver. Each B-1 bomber is $117 million a plane. Now,
the total for alcoholism is $237 million. Even if you want to be very
callous and insensitive about the human tragedy of alcoholism, its
cost is enormous in terms of the money spent on alcoholic abusers by
our juvenile justice, criminal justice, social service, and mental health
systems. Yet, as you properly point out, there is a lack of an effective
constituency to get these priorities in a little better shape. I know
when we try in-the Juvenile Delinquency Subcommittee to get funds
for some of ‘our other juvenile programs, it is just incredible how
tenacious those watchdogs at.the Treasury can be in cutting back on
these programs. :

I think we ought to approach both defense and juvenile programs
with a comparable degree of scrutiny and toughmindedness and
insist upon cost effectiveness. The irony is that those who stand up and
beat the tub about how we waste money on social programs at the
same time lead the pack supporting any costly new weapon system
that someone has designed and that someone wants to produce.
Nobody ever says, “Those guys really do waste money.” Nobody
ever says that.

I can assure you after 14 years in Congress with my set of priorities
I do find it frustrating. It does require perserverance, as you say,
John. You know very well from your own experience, that that’s
exactly what is necessary. I do think that’s one -of the sad things
about the problem of juvenile alcohol abuse is that we don’t get
excited about it until it gets out in the white suburban area where
the middle class lives. As long as it happens somewhere else, we don’t
worry about it. The crime rate, anything else, cut of sight, out of
mind. But I can assure you, we are going to keep trying.

Returning to the specific subject of issue, you also have a program,
dor't you, for disciplinary students with problems?

Mr. Tarscorr. That’s the student assistance program I had refer-
ence to. It’s an outgrowth of an employee assistance program we have,’
Senator, for behavioral-problems of employed persons. We found that
we were getting a goodly number of people or students who were
coming as a result of family problems so we have tenatively set up a
pilot project with one of the local high schools here and we are sent
their, quote, as they call it, “incorrigible” student who has been sus-
pended or under threat of suspension for discipline problems. That’s
the one that I mentioned is 2 months old and that 77 percent of those
students referred to us in those 2 months have chemical problems,
alcohol and/or drugs, and it’s interesting to note again, and I think

that it speaks to our lack of focusing in on this problem, that 86 per-

cent of those people referred to us were females of which 80 percent
had chemical problems.
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We find that young females are much more susceptible particularly
to chemical substance abuse if they come from an alcohol one or two
parent home than the male at an earlier age. That does not negate
the fact that the male will eventually become an alcoholic. We know
that 50 percent of young people who come from alcoholic homes
become alcoholics themselves. Sixty-eight percent of known hard drug
users come from one or two parent alcoholic hores. S

We really have not addressed those needs in relation to females
and that was touched on today. That was the fact that we have no
female facilities as such in this State or in this community. Of course,
there again, the local communities can only do so much. .

Senator CULVER. You know parental alienation, disfunctional
homes, are the root not only of juvenile alcohol abuse but also child
pornography and other problems the subcommittee deals with. You
know unemployment and other systematic problems in our society
undermine the family and conventional values so it is very difficult to
keep a family together. It’s just increasingly more and more difficult
for a parent to cope with the complex pressures of modern society.

1 was interested, Dr. Benton when you talked about the PTA. It
seems to me we have the kind of society where you can buy a paper-
back on how to do anything except to be a good parent. We let anybody
get married. You really have to go through more to get a fishing license.

Increasingly it seems that everyone is more and more impressed that
you must do family counseling if you want to help troubled young
people. If you don’t take on the larger family problem, the reoccurrence
of difficulties is almost inevitable. . S _

Tt also interests me when we deal with social problems in this society
politically, we are so intolerant about qualitative evaluation of pro-
orams. Here again the space program, the military—they have research
and development, and they have testing. They go on anc11 on. We read
in the paper another one down at Cape Canaveral and it cost $300
million. Everybody says, “What do you think of that? Isn't that a
terrible waste?” and the reply is “Well, you can’t expect to succeed
overnight.” ‘ ’ . .

You have to practice and conduct tests. When we deal with science
and mathematics which lend themselves to a greater degree cof cer-
tainty than the social sciences, we accept experimentation and failure,
But it’s fashionable these days to say Government can’t do anything
especially about social problems. Social programs are ineffective. That
is usually a good copout for not doing anything politically about social
problems. I think we have to get a greater degree of public understand-
ing as to the complexity of these things and the willingness to really
try to apply our resources to aggressive experimentation and effort.

Do any of you want to comment on that? It’s just a little gener-
alized. . ‘ ) .

Mr. WricaT. I would. Mary and I talked with school people and
communities a good deal about a concept we call primary prevention.
Basically what that means is promoting the personal and social
growth of people and thereby inhibit or reduce the possibilities of
disfunctional type of behaviors like alcohol and drug abuse but also
child abuse and neglect, those type of issues. The core 1s there but
we talked about coordination between programing.
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We have a lot of juvenile justice programing in the State of Iowa .

that has nothing at all or wants no attachment to alcohol or drug
abuse programs because it jeopardizes. their funding source and it
jeopardizes their position of power or influence but basically presenting
many of the same strategies for preventing juvenile problems that
we are, but they, you know, have that territorial kind of problem.
‘Senator CuLver. I want to thank all of you very, very much and
we hope to keep in touch with you. I viant to review very carefully

in further detail your prepared statements and share them with some .

people in Washington and with some of my colleaguss. We will see
what we can do by way of some of these programs and also, your
agency, Mr. Tapscott, is an excellent one.

Mzr. Tarpscorr. I think, Senator, you would find that you have
extraneous opposition when you begin to ban liquor advertising from
television.

Senator CuLveR. I’'m not insensitive to the interest groups that
flourish in this business. Thank you very much. Our next speaker
will be Dr. Harold Mulford, director of the Center for Alcoholism
Studies, University of Iowa. It’s a pleasure to welcome you here,
Dr. Muliford, and I apologize for the delay in getting to you today.
We are trying to do too much in a short time and I appreciate your
cooperation.

In your statement I noticed, Dr. Mulford, that you are extremely
critical of what you term inappropriate regimentation and standardi-
zation in the community alcoholism service centers in Iowa and I
think you attribute this situation to the inflow of Federal funding
and shift to State control of these centers. Would you tell us for our
record what requirements the Iowa State Division on Alcoholism
imposed which has led to this result and how this affects the services
that are actually offered to the alcoholic?

STATEMENT OF DR. HAROLD MULFORD, DIRECTOR, CENTER FOR
ALCOHOLISM STUDIES, UNIVERSITY OF IOWA, DES MOINES, IOWA *

Dr. Murrorp. Somehow, Senator, it has fallen to me to at least
raise the question, does the emperor have any clothes on. In answer
to your question, the direction of our alcoholism programs in the
last 4 or 5 years, especially since Federal funds became available, is
toward more regimentation, more standardization, and more paper-
work, all in the name of “professionalization’” and accountability.

When one looks at the JCAH standard operating meanual, in-
dividually the standards are quite reasonable, quite plausible, but
the net effect has been to discourage those alcoholics who are in the
earlier stages of their drinking careers and who are most in need of
help. For example, as the standards are implemented and interpreted
in the local centers, they require appointment cards, scheduled
50-minute Lours and 12 to 15 or more pages of forms that have to
be filled out before the alcoholic can get any help.

Rather than improving the effectiveness of the treatment, what
it does is to screen out the alcoholics who are, not ‘“ready’” for treat-
ment. As a result, the centers can boast a good recovery rate because

1 See p. 280 for Dr. Mulford’s prepared statement.
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they h_a,ve,screened out all cases except those that have reached a
point in the natural maturing out process where they don’t really
need much help. This would explain the findings of several rigorously

controlled studies, the most recent of which finds that 3 hours of.

advice by the center staff got results identical with the normal 1
year of hospital treatment. :

Senator Curver. You have established this community project
in'Washington, Iowa, which has been cited, by the HUD in Washing-
ton, D.C., as a model project dealing with community needs. Would
you describe for us this project and the therapy that underlies its
structure or its design? ‘ _ '

Dr. Murrorp. An earlier witness mentioned Alcoholics Anonymous
and I think everyone in the field agrees that science has not come up

- with a treatment that is superior to what Alcoholics Anonymous has

been doing for 40 years. Originally Alcoholics Anonymous was a
response to the fact that the, professional therapies were not appro-
priate to the alcoholic. Alcoholics Anonymous, as I see it, is only
one of the sources in the community that, in combination with many
other sources, the family, the employver, service agencies, and so
on, contribute to the natural maturing out process. What’s going on
in the Washington center is kind of an extension of Alcoholics
Anonymous.

A part of the AA philosophy restrains them from being very agres-
sive in their outreach work to reach large numbers of alcoholics
early in their drinking careers. What the community counselor, call
him a ‘“‘general practitioner” or “generalist’’ rather than a specialist,
what he does in Washington county is reach out, to contact as many
alcoholics as possible as early in their drinking career as possible.
He reaches them through the courts, through the schools, through all
of the social agencies and recruits them into this natural recovery
process and makes maximum use of existing resources. He mobilizes
and coordinates the efforts of all these forces that influence the alco-
holic toward recovery. :

Senator CuLvEr. You also mention in your statement that the
Washington project is more cost effective than the State-run com-
munity centers. Do you have any comparative figures for us on
these operations? _ -

Dr. Murrorp. As I read the quarterly reports put cut by the Iowa
State Division monitoring system on all of the alcoholism centers,
according to the June quarter, 1977 report, the unit cost was $800,
$803 to be exact, per alcoholic per year and it has been climbing.
This compares with an annual unit cost of $100 per alcoholic in the
Washington center. ; ;

To put it in different terms, last year, 1976, the Washington center
served 230 alcoholics en a budget of about $27,000. A nearby center
which serves a much lsiger total population because it’s in a larger
county saw not many more alcoholics and had a total budget of
$238,000, so the unit cost in the State centers is 8 to 10 times greater.

Senator CuLvER. In your statement I think you mentioned you
treat about three times as many people as in the State centers, is
that correct? :

Dr. Murrorp. I think I said that

Senator CuLver. It says the average.

24-811 O =78 = 3

PN S P



_—— e T

30

Dr. Murrorp. They see about three times as many. About 18
percent of the Washington center cases are 20 years and younger
compared with only about 6 percent, I believe, of the State. I think
that’s what you are referring to.

Senator Curver. Do you have any evaluation of the effectiveness
of your self-help approach in relation to juveniles?

Dr. Murrorp. No; I don’t have any hard. data. First I would point
out that juveniles are not—juvenile problem drinkers are not all
that different from adult problem drinkers except that they are in
the very early stages, of course. I have made some comparative studies
comparing effectiveness of the community centers like Washington
with 6 weeks’ treatment at Oakdale Hospital which I was associated
with and could find no difference in the recovery rates. In addition
to that, all of the research that we have to date making very rigorous
comparisons of the effectiveness of one treatment compared to another
treatment consistently finds no difference, and therefore we would
have every reason to believe that the effectiveness of the Washington
center on an individual level is no less—is just as good as any other
known treatment. But the advantage of the Washington center, as
I see it, is that they see ever so many more alcoholics.

Senator Cnver. What would be your suggestions as to how
we could encourage and assist the establishment of these kinds of
programs?

. Murrorp. I would emphasize that T am not arguing that that
app ‘oach is any more effective for any given individual alcoholic.
T am just saying that in the aggregate sense they see so many more.
If we don’t know how to increase the recovery rate, we do know how
to increase the base by reaching more alcobolics. In answer to your
question, again, science is only beginning to get us some hard data.
As the President said the other night, and I think as you mentioned a
couple of times, there are just some problems that the Federal Govern-
ment by itself cannot solve. _

All T can do is to suggest some general guidelines, some general
rinciples. I would first suggest that whatever the Federal Government
does, that it be guided by the self-help principle. That is, help the
community help itself and help the individual help himself; second,
volume or traffic through the office—reach as many alcoholics as
possible as early in their drinking careers as possible; and third, do no
harm. That is, whatever is done by the Federal Government, care
should be taken that it does not weaken the community or the indi-
vidual’s sense of responsibility for solving their own problems.

T think sometimes there is & tendency for special treatments that
are brought in to‘offer themselves as this is the place where you can
get your alcoholism treated. The community tends to sit back and
say, OK, glad to get this problem off our shoulders. You do it. As yet
we don’t have any proven preventative or proven treatment. Finally,
it’s recommended that the Federal Government’s role, and that of
the State government as well, be limited to technical assistance,
advice, suggested guidelines, and limited funding.

" It is recommended that the Tederal funding be in the form of

revenue sharing directly to the local community and earmarked for

alcoholism programs that include juvenile problem drinkers.
Senator CurLveR. I want to thank you very much, Dr. Mulford,
and commend you for your leadership in this area. We will be review-
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ing your full statement very carefully a k L
meye . fully as we work to try and shape the
Th;; ];O}Irlo?lf. program efforts in this area from the Federal Government.
Our final witness today is Mr. Gary Ri in, di
. v Riedmann, director

Department of Substance Abuse. I understand, ,Mie(ﬁ?;dﬁgg;Inggﬁ
gre a%compamed by Jeff Voskans, the administrative officer of “the

epa,rf ment. Could you briefly dsscribe the State’s system for deliv-
ery of service to alcoholics which your department administers?

STATEMENT OF GARY RIEDMANN, DIRECTOR, IOWA DEPARTMENT
OF SUBSTANCE ABUSE, DES MOINES, IOWA

Mr. Riepmann. The State s ' '
R N. . ystem basically tries to cove
%3 efcfloui to provide services to people with alco}ilol problém: aI; gsés})sli'g?g
, et_ ea, tﬁmth inpatient intermediate aftercare, outpatient and pre:
Ken ion efforts. We try to, with the limited amount of funds that we
ave, cover as broad a spectrum as possible. In doing that, we try to
cogperate fully with self-help groups throughout the State.
e‘raat%r ‘QULVE:R. What treatment programs does the department
pl(;(l)lvllnfo or ]uv.elzpﬂe alcohol abuse, and are our young people, as far as
gow? w, availing themselves of whatever services you are providing
Mzr. Rimpmann. At the i Wi
) . present time many are not, with t -
gram exceptions. We have the program. that you heard earl?ég t?ggt
was a private, nonprofit, self-funded program. |
%/e{anatgr Curver. In Sioux City? '
r. Riepmann. Right, plus the Powell IIT in Des Moi rhi
, . ) nes t
we ]i)fliovilde some help. Across the board we have not bee?a ?uvrzgiglé
specifically for juvenile programs. Historically that might be put into
%?ispectwe lbegmmng when the Federal strategy was developed.
Y eI; we talked about the problem of alcohol or drug abuse, we talked
ﬁoloigs :nlczi:ncgiliﬁamgectl}hor ﬁldeé grou% of people who were called alco-
C , e other hand, we identified a group of youn 1
:‘vrhokvge cmlllld call drug abusers. I think the.func}fing };Jnd %tf:i?e%;:
orked at these two extremes. What we found in effect was that funds
gggesgggw;lgg fotix}tfla{rvene ffor }fhose two populations. What we have
, 8 ink one of the reasons for this hearing, i h
co%e up (;r\.flth a very much larger population that we hmgé tl;so \s‘;iveajve
elga;' ing alcohol, we have not just the older or the middle-aged
glopllll ait_non of male alcoholics. We have a very large number of female
r?)% o 1fcs. YVe have apparently a very rapidly increasing younger
%‘o’ % of male and female people with alcoholism and alcohol problems.
intse ! (fcctl)r?mg a much broader perspective than had originally been
e o? thgr ?},% 1Feders_al hstrategy, and I think we attempted to solve
thole proble%x)n . em with the funding, but we haven’t attacked the
enator CurLveRr. In terms of our subcommi ink i
ER. _ ttee work, I think
\C?lvould be helpful if you could provide us for our record what the ’tﬁ'lealg
W%W% 1sI now of the amount of money from the Federal Government
\ 1cC olwa has received for alcohol treatment and prevention sery-
ices. Could you also provide the sources of these funds and the s ecific
puﬁoseﬁ for which they were utilized? | P
r. R1iepMaNN. Agam, T think this might relate to some of
\ , . th -
fusion of the funding levels, too. In the State of Iowa we receiveef(l;‘(())ﬁl

1 See p. 283 for Mr. Riedmann's prepared statement.
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the State for treatment, maintenance, and care about $950,000 for
services in the State. We receive $750,000 in Federal formula funds to
provide treatment and prevention services statewide. In addition to
that, there are probably $375,000 in title 20 HEW funds which go
into treatment zervices. . :
“We have in the programs some CETA ‘funds from the Federal
Government as support services for programs. We have original
poverty grantsin the amount of 400,000 that come 1nto the State.
Also we have about $3 million for ASAP programs that has also
come into the State. L .
Senator CuLvER. So what is the total Federal funding?
Mr. Riepmany. We are t&lkin%about $8 million.
Senator CurLver. Is that total Federal funding in this area?
Mr. RiepMaNN. Right. ' o - _
Senator CuLver. And very little of this money is used for
revention?
P Mr. Riepmany. Right. I think of specific alcohol funds for the
entire State, we might be talking sbout $100,000 going to prevention.
Senator CuLveR. Qut of the $8 million.
Mr. RIEDMANN. Yes. . 5 .
Senator CuLvER. You have virtually no real juvenile alcoholism
emphasis? . .
l\pdr. Rrepmann., What we have expected, in fact, is that the pro-
grams we fund are providing juveniles services. We did a check this
ast week on mental health centers and our treatment centers through-
out the State. What we have found is that they are providing services
for juveniles. o . ' o ‘ -
Senator Curver. But you did that in anticipation of this hearing?
Mr. Rizpmany. Right. We are not targeted specifically for juvemle
services. We have found that we have not even allowed in the client
records up to this time to show age breakdowns, for alcohol clients.
We are changing that from the State level, and we are in the process
of implementing a system to find ou% how many juveniles with
problems we do have and insure that they are served. Also in the
criminal justice area we have begun a very specific effort to 1c.1ent}fy
the number of alcohol problems that we have in the population for
the criminal justice system. I think Jeff might also add to ‘that.

STATEMENT OF JEFF VOSKANS, ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER, IOWA
DEPARTMENT OF SUBSTANCE ABUSE, DES MOINES, IOWA

Mr. Vosgans. Senator I would like to point out something. That
$8 million mentioned really is not in the control of the department. I
think that basically thé department as the recipient, State depart-
ment of chemical substance abuse funds now receives only $730,000
of Federal money. All the other funds that are n the total package
are designated funds that go to specific programs_and those programs
have to apply for the money directly to the National Insititue on
Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism. So they receive those funds, but
without controls of the State office. It seems a rather large sum when
we say $8 million cash availability in Towa. I would say 1t’s closer to
$10 million simply because there are, for instance, some research
grants that go into the State for research into causes of alcoholism

and so on.
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State offices have no control on that research money whatsoever.
Those are negotiated, funded, and directly sent to the providers so the
State office is only responsible in a direct sense for $730,000 of Federal
money that comes here to6 Des Moines. Those funds are distributed
via contracts to local providers of services. We have at the moment 26
providers in the State of Towa and 26 principal contractors. They in
total include 55 satellite service centers and 17 halfway houses.

In addition to that, we also have four mental health institutes that
are providing treatment of alcoholism, and in addition they are also
providing some training. We also have private entities such as Powell
ITI, chemical dependency unit of St. Vincent’s Hospital, and so on.

I think if I may briefly allude and not for the sake of argument but
merely clarification that the issue addressed of impose§ rules and
everything that would have to be, as a need of compliance for programs
in the community, come from the following perspective: In Iowa we
are trying to operate a $5.2 million program with a $2.2 million budget
for cash availability. It means that the program people out in the
communities, to sustain their functions, have to negotiate funds from
other sources such as CETA, counties, cities, donations, and in some
instances try to subscribe to a third-party payor or insurance carrier.

Recognizing that they need to sustain their operations in the com-

munity, programs can’t solely depend on Federal or State dollars,
and this is the handwriting on the wall. The recommendation by the
Towa Commission on Alcoholism with the agreement that the programs
must agree (since they are nonprofit, private corporations) that they
undergo evaluation by the Joint Commission on the Accreditation of
Hospitals, This would help establish quality care, and make programs
more eligible so that third-party payors or insurance carriers weuld
subscribe to the cost of alcoholism so it has very little to do with any
capricious attitudes on behalf of the State to do that.

I feel that that is the route we will have to go sooner or later. I
think indeed prevention has been a rather neglected area. At the same
time, when we really get down to nuts and bolts issues, I think we
need to recognize that we really don’t know what we mean when we
say prevention. What are we really trying to prevent? On one end of
the spectrum we have a situation where we all are subjected to constant
and repetitious advertising promotion like Mr. Tapscott impressed.
If you like to go “‘around the world,” you have to have ‘‘gusto.” On
the other end of the spectrum we have to pick up the people that have
already fallen down and try to rehabilitate them.

The end of promotion and private industry, is to make a dollar. To
obtain a dollar here to solve the problem it 1s rather difficult because
the rationale comes in saying it’s ill will, immorality, self induced,
and you name it, whatever term you like to employ, and they say why
bother because he or she is only an alcoholic. I think the problem is
not really whether it’s a juvenile problem. I don’t think it’s only an
adult problem. I think it’s a total society problem. :

I think we are trying to correct an individual within a structure and
doing very little about the environment around him. Unless we change
our attitudes about the environment and unless we become respon-
sible in a sense where fhe responsibility should be, establishing a
healthy attitude about the use of alcohol and drugs in material ways.
Unless we develop that, I don’t think that we are really going to have
a smashing success in saying that simply because we had 10 hours of
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school work or 5 lectures in this setting that we are going to succeed.

Senator CuLver, What would be a healthy attitugc:le a%out alcohol
reflected in a television commercial? If you were given a commission
to design a_healthy television commercial for alcoholic sales, what
would it be like?

Mr. Vosxans. Well, I think that first of all—

Senator Curver. Obviously the person that gives you the gusto
bit would be the last one to say that he is encouraging excessive drink-
ing. He just wants to have good, healthy, social drinking and all the
positive aspects of the grape. But given a free society and economy,
how would you devise an advertisement for television you think would
reflect a health attitude toward alcoholism?

Mr. Voskans. I don’t think that issue really—that question can be
answered directly what is & healthy attitude towards alcohol. T think
&t the moment when we are advertising alcohol, we are promoting
the same. ‘

Senator CuLver. Here is a point: Should we ban advertising?

Mr. Vosxans. No; I don’t think so.

Senator CuLver. Should we put warnings?

Mr. Vosxans. I think there should be warnings addressed.

Senator CuLver. What if they did the ad—had the hero on the
viking ship or whatever—followed by a warning, excessive alcohol
use will kill you? ) ,

Mr. Voskans. I think excessive use is one thing that needs to be
addressed. T hope we all recognize that alcohol is here to stay in our
society. It’s a question of how we cope with it and I think you don’t
address that issue of how we can cope with the alcohol used. Most
approaches from rehabilitative or preventative points of view are that
we are not talking about alcohol, we are talking about alcoholism.
We are saying alcoholism creates these problems in our society.

This is what happens as a result of alcoholism. Of course, that’s
being pushed away by society in general because they say, “I’'m not
an alcoholic. I only drink a six pack a night or I only killed a pint
today, so therefore, unless I sleep under certain bridges or live in
certain environments, I’m not really an alcoholic,” and I think this
i1s where the public in general is being misled.

What’s an alcoholic? Of course, to define it is rather difficult
because there are many alcoholics, many definitions. The point is
that I think that clear understanding needs to be among people that
continuous and frequent use of alcohol will create some problems,
and problems of such a magnitude that later the society has to cope
with the individual and the family and so on.

Mr. Riepmann. Senator, I think a comment is important on &
comparison with cigarette smoking, and the danger warnings, I
don’t know if that has been proven very successful as providing
any hesitancy on the part of people to avoid smoking. I think the
key factor to be considered is how overwhelming is the use and abuse
of alcohol as a health problem across the country today? I think if we
do come to the point where it is so obvious—which it may very well
be coming because of the terrible and tragic results of such a broad
public perception of alcohol—if it comes to the point that those
damages are so great then certainly I don’t know that we are talking
about free enterprise alone. I think we are talking about a much
broader social issue and I think that is the general consideration.
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Senator CuLvER. Your statement indicates that there is a need
for better coordination of Federal, State, and lecal effort to combat
alcobol abuse and misuse. What specific suggestions would you
have for us there in terms of how to achieve better coordination and
program activities? . ,

Mr. RiepMANN. As you know, we are a new Department of Sub-
stance Abuse and we have taken over two main Federal funding
sources. We are talking about the National Institute of Drug Abuse
and the National Institute of Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism. What we
have found up to the present time is that we have a most unusual
pattern in the drug programs which have presently been serving the
young people. What we have been finding is that 70 to 85 percent
or at least 40 to 85 percent of the youth in those programs also have
alcohol problems. -

We are talking today about & polydrug problem when in effect we
are also telling those programs from the Federal level, you can’t
treat a person that comes in with the major problem being alcohol
abuse if you get funds from NIDA. The same thing with alcohol
funds. You are out to treat drug abuse. Again, we are talking about
a much broader problem than that.

I think the specific recommendation there is that the institutes
work in a very much cooperative effort to support the local efforts
on the State level. Also, in bringing Federal funds into the local level,
there has been a mandated health systems review process of all Federal
alcohol and drug health funds. I think that’s a very important
process to develop, a statewide input on finding out where those
funds are going and developing a consistent planning mechanism.

I support that that emphasis be continued. In the area ol preven-
tion, I see very much a need again to continue increased cooperation
of the Federal agency. We are talking about programs like the LEAA
and NIAAA who are involved in the area of prevention. What these
agencies do are very much cooperative efforts in the area of alcohol
other misuse and health problems. They have got to cooperate and
provide adequate funding,

I think specifically in the area of prevention we need so much re-
search before we can pour Federal d%llars into programs to find out
what they do. We are being asked by the Federal Government to show
a comprehensive product before we have any support even to show
what the product is going to be. We need both funding for prevention
efforts and t6 do the research that’s necessary.

I think what has been happening here in the last month, for in-
stance, all of a sudden we receive almost no Federal dollars for preven-~
tion efforts and in the last month we receive about four Federal re-
quests for proposals for prevention programs. All of a sudden they
realized that prevention was a priority. They gave us a month to fill
out proposals for comprehensive prevention programs for the State.
Well, obviously they found out that that seemed to be asking a great
deal frum the States and somebody must have spoken very loudly so
they changed it and gave us 5 weeks. ‘

Somehow they are not addressing a long-term comprehensive ap-
proach to the problem, and, you know, we need both the cooperation
of the agencies and the consideration for the problems.
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Senator Curver. Let me thank you both very much for your testi-
mony here today. I am very grateful to you for your suggestions and
this completes our testimony for today. I want to thank all the
witnesses for their contributions and their informed and valuable
statements that we have received. This hearing record will be care-
fully reviewed by the subcommittee and we will try to act construc-
tively on a number of the very useful suggestions and proposals that
have been heard. ,

The testimony, I think, clearly confirms the fact that the misuse of
alcohol among young people has become an extremely serious problem,
not only in our own State of Towa but throughout the country.

We have heard how the excessive use of alcohol impairs the ability
of young people to function at home, in school, and in employment
situations and that there is a very close connection between abuse on
the one hiand and juvenile delinquency problems on the other.

I believe we would agree that programs of alcoholism treatment and
prevention for young people must be aimed specifically at that age
group. It is very properly suggested here that juvenile alcohol abuse
is part of a larger social problem that has to be addressed in the
context of that %&rger problem. Our children and youth march to a
different drummer than adults and I think that we are now waking up
to the fact that we have an alarming alcohol problem with our youth.

The basic attitudes of our society today toward alcohol and alcohol-
ism have been described here. These attitudes make the problem of
dealing with youthful abusers extremely difficult. If parents drink
gnd_ cctl)nsider drinking socially acceptable, why should the children be

enied. =

Our adult society which, a few years ago, panicked over the use of
drugs by children and youth has failed to really see some of the
potential problems and the danger of alcohol abuse. ,

Most people are oblivious to the fact that alcohol causes more health
and social damage and economic loss to our society than all other
drugs combined. . ‘ o :

While the attitude towsrd social drinking is permissive, the attitude
toward alcoholism is intolerant. Although alcoholism is recognized in
informed circles as an illness, many people persist in regarding it as a
behavioral problem. All of these attitudes complicate the problem of
dealing with our young people. , - - ,

It is less than a decade ago that we launched our first national
g‘(’)gram to try to cope with alcoholism and alcohel abuse and Senator

arold Hughes, of course, was.in the vanguard of that initial effort.
Now it is apparent that a comparable national effort is needed to meet
the rapidly growing incidence -of alcohol abuse among the young
people. That effort must reflect: some of the experience we Tiave had in
the last decade about coordination of programs and about the inter-
relationship between drug abuse on the one hand and alcohol problems
on the other. ; PR . R e

A further complication is the fact that many juvenile offenders are
polydrug users and ingest various ¢ombinations: along with:alcohol
to get new kinds of {‘highs.?” - ' i :

- We are a drug-dependent society, as was pointed out by one of our
earlier witnesses. We use drugs, ranging from coffee and cigarette in
the morning to the noon martini and sleeping pill at night. Alcohol
enjoys a privileged place. Our society not only accepts alcohol

consumption, it actively encourages it.
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. The mossage comes on stron i inking i
" ' : g trong through the media that drinki
fun. Given this cultural climate it will require an enormous co%%dliﬁ
;{%teed‘natlé)r}wllﬁe eﬁorti ag(ai,mst the tide to convince youngsfjers that
Ssive drinking is also dangerous and to hel : :
ha’%ﬁ ah‘eﬁdy become addicted.g 1€ those-xecover who
e subcommittee is investigating what can be done at the Federal
ltge% to meet this emerging crisis. But as I suggested earlier, the m;i?l
fl e;); fng%avs 1to bte at t}l{le community level. It is my hope that this
; at least awaken some parent
mls{;se lily i parents to the dangers of alcohol
outh alcoholism is a subtle and enormous] i
! S | _ y complicated bt
that cries out for sensitive public understanding. I hoII))e this ha,Isn%e:If
::1)11 ultni?lal }i‘?l;lisg that will leadhto more effective and constructive
1tions. Lhank you very much. The heari vi i
until further call of the C}:)lrair. ® heating wil stend in recess
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‘ PREPARED‘STATEMENTS SUBMITTED FOR THE@,RECORD‘

StaTEMENT OoF MircrELL R. Work, Execurive DIRECTOR, ALCOHOL AND DRUG
ABUsE SERrvices, INc.,, Des Moines, Towa

JUVENILE ALCOHOLISM 1978, THE SUBTLE EPIDEMIC

There is a subtle and silent epidemic. sweeping our county today, affecting this
country’s most precious natural resourse, our young people. This epidemic is
juvenile alcoholism. The extent of the problem exténds throughout the country,
from urban centers to rural areas and communities. It does not seem to dis-
criminate in terms of race, econcmic level or sex. It is destroying hundreds of
thousands of young people and if not addressed; if not clearly and openly identified,
will continue to take a heavy toll in young lives, family stability and ultimately

_ on society itself by limiting the number of productive citizens contributing to the

well being of America.

While we have been generally aware of the problem of teenage drinking for
sometime, such behavior has often been tolerated and subtly encouraged by this
society which has such ambivalent views toward aleohol. In fact, for many young
people and adults, alcohol usage is viewed as a rite-of-passage, symbolizing entry
to adulthood. While we have been aware of the problem, we have not taken. it
seriously, we have not understood its implications and consequently we have not
implemented -effective education, prevention, aid treatment programs necessary
to combat the spread of the epidemic—alcoholism among our young people.

_In the following text, I will address the juvenile alecohol problem; as I understand
it as the Director of ADASI, a ¢omprehensive drug and alcohol treatment program
in central Iowa. I will also be presenting to you a model for.juvenile alcoholism
treatinent, as well as some specific recommendations that need, in my opinion,
immediate attention not only here in Iowa, but throughout the Nation. ~

Assessing parameters of the problem . : . o
Part of the difficulty in accurately assessing the extent of this problem is a

.definitional one. Surveyors often have trouble agreeing with one another in estab-
 lishing a definition of alcoholism" and alcohol abuse.. We must remember that
aleohol-usage is prevasive within our society and as a continuuin the lines between

alcohol usage, abuse, and aléoholism: are unclear and :often difficult.to define.

- Recent studies, however, suggest the following extent of the problem: -

1. Statewide trends: Within Iowa, teendge alcoliol use and abuse has been
identified a a growing problem. In a study conducted by Carl Chambers, et al.,
1974, it was'estimated that 17,000 adolescents in Iowa between the ages of 14 and
17 were “heavy drinkers”. Further, the study found that of persons surveyed that
had experienced alcohol-related problems, over 11 Qercent were 17 years:of age
or younger. In addition, almost one-half. (45 percent*-~*+hose who worried about
their drinkihg were between the ages of 14 and 24. Chu:ibers also found extensive
polydrug involvement among teenagers. An estimated 14 percent of youth 12 to
14 were active drug users who frequently mixed alcohol and other drugs in com-
bination with one another, - o o

. These findings have been generally supported by studies done by the Towa Drug
Abuse  Authority, the Iowa Department of Public Instruction and the ‘“Des
Moines Register and Tribune”. In May 1976, the Iowa Drug Abuse Authority
reported that earliest age of reported use of alcohol had dropped from 9 years of
age in 1974 to 6 years of age in 1976. In a study conducted by the Iowa Depart-
ment of Public Instruction, it wis found that 25 percent of the students in grades
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6 through 12 that were surveyed, began drinking at 9 years of age or younger. In
addition, this particular study found that 28 percent of the students surveyed used
alcohiol more than once a month and 64 percent felt alcohol use was alright for
special occasions.

2. Central Iowa trends: In Central Iowa, an Area Education District XI study
found that 33 percent of the students surveyed used aleohol more than once a
month and that 27 percent used aleohol more than once a week. In the Chambers
study 17 percent of the youths in Central Iowa (Area C) were also found to be
active drug users. In a poll conducted by the “Des Moines Register and Tribune”,
July 19, 1975, within Polk County public high schools, it was found that 70
percent of the students surveyed answered ‘“‘yes” to the question, do you drink
alcoholic beverages. Fifty-nine percent of these drank once a month or more.
In addition, it was found that 41 percent has also used marijuana and that 16
percent had used hard drugs at least once.

The extensive use of alechol by juveniles is further reflected in statisties by the
juvenile justice system in Polk County. The Des Moines Police Department
recorded 530 juveniles arrested in 1976 for a drug and/or alcohol-related offense.
This amounts to approximately 26 percent of all Des Moines Police Department
juvenile arrests. Twenty percent (473 cases) of all unofficial juvenile court cases
were for drug and/or alcohol-related offenses. In 1976, 6.4 percent (655 cases) of all
official juvenile court cases involved drug and/or aleohol usage.

The chief of juvenile probation in Polk County reports ‘“a dramatic increase in
juveniles with alcohol-related offenses’’. He also indicated that for the first time
- his office was dealing with juveniles that are hard core alcoholics. Polk County
juvenile probation contacted ADASI late in 1977 requesting assistance in dealing
with the adolescents involved in juvenile delinquency behavior with attending
alcohol problems.

The annual projected caseload to be referred to ADASI by juvenile probation
authorities was estimated to be 470 different persons per year.

Treatment services avatlable

The needs assessment data available reveals not only a significantly large
number of juveniles experiencing alcohol problems, but that this problem is
frequently connected with juvenile delinquency problems. In addition, data also
suggests that drinking is occurring at an earlier and earlier age. Yet treatment
programs; funders and governmental bodies at the local, state, and national level,
ha,vlgz1 largely neglected the need for specialized services for juveniles with alcohol
problems. ‘ , ‘

In a review of juvenile alcohol services available throughout the State of Towa,
one can conclude that juvenile services are minimal to nonexistent. The traditional
treatment delivery systems for alcoholism have been targeted primarily to adults
and more particularly adult males. It is important that we look toward realigning
our priorities in terms of treatment delivery, and that we do a better job of
reaching young people with alcohol problems. ,

ADASI, Alcoholism and Drug Abuse Services, Inc., is vitally concerned about
the treatment needs of juveniles with alcohol problems. However, at this time,
such programming is minimal, with few funding sources available to help provide
juvenile alcoholism services.! This becomes even more significant when one con-
siders that ADASI is the primary service provider for alcoholism and drug abuse
services in Polk County and central Towa. However, at this time, juveniles are
receiving specialized services only in the ADASI Juvenile Residence which has
been recently relicensed to take in alcohol abusing juveniles.

If appropriate funding were available, however, a model, comprehensive,
juvenile program could be developed by ADASI to service juvenile alcoholism
and alcohol abuse needs through a continuum of care delivery system. This model
program would be composed of the following components: ,

1. Education, prevention and early intervention services g :

This component would be involved primarily in dealing with schools, eriminal
justice and/or other groups, dealing primarily with ycuth in an effort to both
educate and to involve juveniles in effective prevention. strategies. Small group
discussions and counseling would be a major component; althcugh individual and
family counseling would also be utilized. In addition, these groups would serve as

! Notg : Outpatient and residential serﬂces are avallable at ‘ADAS‘I for juveniles with
primary drug problems.
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a basis for possible referrals to other services as needed. The prevention strategy
to be utilized could be alternatives, peer assistance counseling and other affectively
based group dynamic programs.

2. Detozxzfication

Those youths referred to ADASI as voluntary or court-referred clients for
detoxification as a result of intoxication, could be treated at the existing ADASI
detoxification facility if minor renovations were made. This would require the
provision of appropriate medical care and support staff to insure that withdrawal
and/or associated medical problems could be addressed. '

3. Intermediate treatment

An intermediate residential treatment program that would last for 14 days
could be provided as an adjunct to the detoxification as necessary. This would
include a live-in treatment residence with intense counseling, both on group and
individual basis. Treatment planning, as well as identification of any ancillary
services required, would also be part of the heavily structured routine. This
component would include 24-hour supervision and monitoring of all clients:

4. Residential care ' ' ,

Currently, ADASI is operating a residential facility for juvenile males, 14
through 17 years of age, experiencing substance abuse problems. Through the
addition of a minimal number of staff members, the current facility capacity
could be extended to include up to an additional 10 juveniles experiencing alcohol
problems, This program involves a structured phase system through which
client responsibility is stressed, and reintegration into the community through
educational and/or vocational involvement is required. In addition, this highly
structured program consists of individual, family and group counseling and
general house meetings on an on-going basis, as well as the development of
recreational and vocational activities. : »

5. Out-patient services

Currently, out-patient services are available for adults; but by adding from
two-to-four staff, it would be possible to create a juvenile component to provide
appropriate out-patient counseling on a group, individual and. family basis.
This program could be utilized for those juveniles in need of a less structured
environment in which to deal with their alcohol problems. Such an approach could
be used as a criminal justice alternative by juvenile court.

6. Aflercare services

Aftercare services could be provided to juveniles through the development of
on-going support group activities and other related functions as an important
reintegration tool for the client as he begins to re-enter society on a permanent
basis. Linkage to programs such as Alateen would be considered as appropriate
under aftercare services, as well as on-going contact by the assigned aftercare
counselor. We encourage Alcoholics Ancaymous to assist ih the development of
programs for juveniles with alcohol pr.iblems, Other services available to this
component would also include educational and vocatioral assessment and place-
ment through ADSAT’s vocational component. Family involvement would also
be encouraged. . ,

‘We feel the above model targeted to juveniles is extremely necessary and needed
to best serve the needs of central Iowa. In addition, ADASI’'s staff has experience
in working with juveniles and ¢wtld utilize that expertise in such. a venture.
Finally, with only minimal renovation, facilities and counseling centers, already
in operation by ADASI, could be used to implement such a program. What is
not available at this time is funding for such a program. Even more basic to the
funding issue is a commitment on the part of the community and this country
as a whole to combat juvenile alcoholism. . ‘

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS

In our experience in Central Iowa, as well as the data we have gathered re-
flecting the needs and trends throughout the entire state, juvenile alcoholism
is a serious and growing problem of epidemic proportions. It is important that
existing resources be¢*reallocated to address the problem at the same time that
new resources are also being developed, if we are to begin making a creditable
effort to address the problem. P ‘ SR '
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In an attermpt to comprehensively address the full scope and nature of this
problem, the following twelve recommendations are offered to better deal with
juvenile alcoholism.

1. Definition of terms. We need to do a better job in defining exactly what is
meant by such terms as social drinking, heavy drinking and alcoholism. This is
necessary to determine at what points on the alcohol consumption continuum
what kinds of treatment or prevention efforts are needed.

2. Measurement of the problem: We need accurate incidence and prevalence
studies to measure the localized extent of drinking problems among young people.
These studies should be financed by the federal government and made mandatory
for each state as a requirement for receipt of federal funds. Specific action plans
and programming could then be developed as approrpiate to each state. Currently,
computer program designs have been developed with the capability of conducting
such incidence and prevalence studies. An example of such a program is the Con-
tingency Table Analysis Model developed by IMS, Ltd. of Ambler, Pennsylvania.

3. Establishment of Controls in Advertising Aleohol Consumption: Drinking is
a learned behavior. Media messages to young people play a large part in influencing
their attitudes and behavior. Television especially portrays alcohol consumption
as glamorous; not only acceptable but expected of “successful and happy people”.

4. Development of More Effective Education Strategies: Scare tactics have been
shown to be ineffectual and counter productive in the area of both drug and
alcohol prevention. New prevention programs which deal with drinking in a
broader scope of behavior are needed. Purely cognitive and factual approaches
often used by the public school system are incomplete. The problem needs to be
addressed in the context of decisionmaking. Young people need to better under-
stand the dynamics of decisionmaking which includes not only facts, but peer
influence, values clarification, the importance of environment, affective education
and self-concept. Better understanding of the decisionkmaking process will result
in better decisions, regarding alcohol and drug use, juvenile delinquency and pre-
marital sex. . , : g

5. Targeting of Effective Education Prevention Programming at Younger Age
Groups: With the reported age of first use declining in recent years (6 years of age
has been reported) primary prevention programs must deal with creative ap-
proaches to early elementary and preschool populations. S

6. The Need for Innovative Prevention Programs: New prevention programs
need to be encouraged. These might include alternatives or peer counseling pro-
grams which have proven saccessful and cost effective by training young people
who can relate to other young people effectively. By developing peer counseling
groups large numbers of young people can be reached at minimal cost. Most im-~
peratively, a Federal commitment to prevention in terms of dollars is needed.

7. Funding for Comprehensive Juvenile Treatment Programs: The establish-
ment of alcoholism programs targeted toward the unique needs of juveniles. This
should include the establishment of treatment modalities which are currently made
available to adults—detoxification, intermediate care, residential, out-patient,
and aftercare. Heavy emphasis should be placed on family counseling. Staff in such
programs should be trained in alcohol and drug abuse in order to competently deal
with the polydrug abuse trends that are so common among young people.

8. Development of Special Adolescent Treatment Programs: Demonstration
programs are needed that not only deal with the needs of the adolsecent but the
unique needs of juveniles who compose special groups such as: females, Indians,
children of aleoholic parents, and juvenile delinquents. ‘

9. Development of Assessment, Education and Treatment Programs to he Used
in Conjunction with the Juvenile Justice System: Those juveniles arrested or sent
to juvenile court with an alecohol-related problem should routinely be assessed to
determine if a heavy drinking cr alcoholism syndrome has begun and to provide
alechol education and treatment as appropriate. Young people who are just
establishing alcoholism patterns ¢an be helped in many cases provided appropriate
treatment services are made available. Family counseling and parent education
sessions should also be included to provide comprehensive services. Effectiveness of
such programs could be measured in long-term reduction in the incidence of
juvenile delinquency and drinking. :

10. The Need for Program KEvaluation: If new programs are %o be instituted
which will require additional funding, evaluation components should be required
to track education, prevention, and treatment outcomes to determine effectiveness
in terms of reduced drinking and juvenile delinquent behavior. :

.11, Expanded Social/Psychological Research is greatly. needed to identify the
interlinking relationship between physiological, sociological, psychological, and
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WHAT IS ADASI?

ADASI (Alcohol and Druy Abuse Services Incorporated) is a private, non-profit
social service agency with major responsibility for providing comprehensive
alcoholism and drug abuse prevention, treatment and rehabilitation services to
Polk County and Central Iowa with residential treatment services available to
persons residing anywhere in Iowa. ADASI is governed by a corporate Board of
Directors who establish programmatic and fiscal policies. The Executive
Director is responsible for the daily operation of the agency. There are two

major service components of ADASI--ADASI Drug Services and ADASI Alcchol Services.

A1l services are strictly confidential and available through either individual
inquiry or by referral from social service or criminal justice systems. Funding
for ADASI comes from numerous federal, state, Jocal and private sources inclu-
ding: National Institute on Drug Abuse; National Institute on Alcoholism and
Alcohol Abuse; Department of Health, Education, and Welfare; Iowa Division on
Alcoholism; Iowa Drug Abuse Authority; Iowa State Department of Social Services;
Polk County Board of Supervisors; as well as other private and public agencies.
While third party and private pay is encouraged, no client will be refused
services on their -inability to pay for treatment. .

What We Believe: ADASI's Philosophy

ADASI believes that ali clients are entitled to be treated in a confidential

manner when seeking and obtaining services. Strict compliance with federal

and state confidentiality laws is maintained. Client information can. be made

2xail?pletto referring agencies through a written release statement signed by
e client.

ADASI believes that all treatment must be individualized in order to address
the unique needs of each client in treating the complexities of alcoholism
and drug dependency.

ADASI is committed to cost effective delivery of quality services to clients
experienciny. alcoholism and/or drug problems.

DRUG. SERVICES AVAILABLE

Four major service areas offered by ADASI Drug Services are: Education/
Prevention, Outreach and Intervention; Treatment/Rehabilitation, and
Reintegration.

47

Education/Prevention

Prevention programs are directed towards preventing drug abuse before it
becomes a physical, physiological, and/or social problem. This includes
dealing with the root cause of drug abuse--alienation, low self-esteem and
anxiety. . Drug education services inciude the dissemination of drug speci-
fic information to encourage a greater understanding of the physiological
and psychological effects of chemical substances., It also includes train-
ing of parents, peers, teachers, and other significant persons who interact
with potential drug abusers to identify early drug dependent behavior and
act appropriately before a drug dependency or addiction develops.

A. Guided Group Interaction

This program,dea1s directly with young people in small groups to help
them openly discuss personal concerns and problems. Delivered in 15
or 30 week sessions, these programs include the f011owing: "

1. Values Clarification o
2. Decision-making Skills : o
3. Life Planning

4, Survival Skills

5. Understanding Emotions

6. Self-esteem Enhancing Exercises

B. Alternatives Program

These programs stress that feeling good or "high" without chemicals is ~
a possible and rewarding experience. Many activities are offered:
camping, canoeing, sports, deep-muscle relaxation, yoga, and guided
fantasy trips. Small groups from 6 to 12 persons are used in this
process with trained facilitators to provide guidance and non-directive
structure for all groups.

C. Teacher Training in Effective Drug Prevention

ADASI Drug Services has planned, delivered and evaluated ctmprehensive
training programs for school personnel. This four-phase program
incJudes instruction in drug specific data and the underlying causes
of drug abuse. After training is completed, trainers develop teams
which in turn develop drug prevention programs that meet the unique
needs of their own particular school.

D.  Prevention Effectiveness Training

This training is available from ADASI Drug Services staff with PET
instructor licenses who combine effective communication techniques in
a drug prevention context.

E. Drug Information Seminars

Drug information seminars are available to present drug specific infor-
mation to lay and pnpfessiona] groups.

———
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F. Lectures and Sireaking Engagements

" The ADASI Drug Services Education/Prevention staff are available to :
speak to community or youth groups on drug-abuse and related

topics. Appointments can be made by calling (515)288-9775.
G. Tours 6f the ADASI Drug Services Central Facility

Tours of the facility are availablie by appointment to interested
groups by calling (515)288-9775.

Qutreach/Intervention

Qutreach and intervention services are aimed at identifying‘and communi-
cating with those youth and young adulks who are experimenting w1th various
drugs of abuse, but who have not acquired a drug qependency or addiction.
The goal of these services is to arrest the behav1or before physical, psy-
chological and/or social damage occurs. This is done by addressing the‘
root causes of drug abuse and providing meaningful alternatives which will
meet each individual's needs in a constructive way.

ADASI believes that effective outreach and intervention or secondary pre-
vention services should be community-based. Thus, many of these services
are offered through schools, churches and other social services agencies.
Referrals to ADASI Drug Services programs come from teachers, physicians,
and other human service workers.

A. Secondary Prevention Groups

Secondary prevention groups deal with confronting the experimenter in
confidential sessions to allow him to reassess his current 1ifestyle
directions and to identify root causes of drug abuse or other self-
destructive behaviors., Emphasis is placed on honesty and group member
support. Groups are facilitated by at least two trained counselors.

B. Peer Assistant Training

Peer assistant training is a peer counseling program developed by ADASI
Drug Services to train young people to reach.the1r peers in an effort

to promote positive decision-making and to q1scourage the use of drugs.
This program includes a comprehensive training session followed by

actual group and/or individual peer training, Experienced young per- .
sons then assist in the training of new peer counselors thus perpetuating
this program at minimal cost and supervision.

C. Individual Counseling

Individual counseling is availabie for those persons experiencing drug
or drug-related difficulties and who seek the assistance of an ADASI
Drug Services counselor on an individual, basis.

TSI
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D. Drugline {515)280-1111

- Drugline is aA24-hcur’te1ephonekcounse]ing and referral service that
is available through Community Teélephone Counseling,. Inc. and supported
by ADASI: . Concerns regarding drug use, abdse and relited problems can
be discussed with trained telephone counselors. ; ,

i

E. Free Medical Clinic

The free medical clinic services attract many persons to ADASI Drug
Services for medical assistance on Monday and Wednesday evenings, from
6:30 - 9:00.p.m., from ADASI professional medica)l staff.

Treatment and Rehabilitation

A1l services provided by ADASI reflect our comprehensive approach to.drug
treatment. When another agency refers a client to ADASI Drug Services,
treatment staff will remain in regular communication with the referring
agency to assure continuity of care, an efficient and thorough intake and
diagnostic process, the development of a treatment plan, and implementation
of program services. Treatment services are monitored by ADASI Drug
Services' Treatment Director and Medical Director to insure that quality
treatment is provided in each service modality. : :

A. Outpatient Counseling/Therapy

By far the most utilized of ADASI Drug Services pragrams, outpatient
staff are presently working with nearly 300 clients in individual and
group outpatient counseling/therapy and othetr ancillary services. - All
outpatient clients have access to any ADASIL service if that seryice is
conducive to his/her treatment goals. These include such services as
job training and placement, medical care, and psychological diagnosis.
Outpatient clients may receive counseling or intensive therapy in indi-
vidual or group sessions. Services may be obtained either at the
Regional Treatment Center in Des Moines, or at county and neighborhood
sites established in cooperation with other agencies throughout Polk
and the surrounding counties. . . : .

B. Methadone Maintenan&e/Detoxificatiun

For clients who are addicted to heroin or other cpiates, ADASI Drug
Services provides methadone maintenance and detoxification. . For per-
sons. experiencing a short-term addiction to opiates (less than two
years), a twenty-one day detoxification program is available, In the
case of a client who has been addicted to heroin for a minimum of two
years and, in the opinion of the intake staff requires a chemotherapeuy-
tic maintenance regimen for a period of time, a methadone maintenance
program is also available. Methadone simultaneously prevents withdrawal
symptoms and blocks the effect of heroin on the body. Persons on-a
maintenance program are expected to participate fully in other elements
of ADASI Drug Services treatment program. .
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Family/Marital Counseling

Drug Abuse may involve many aspects of a person's life including his
relatjonships with other family members. Therefore, family counseling
is available to ensure involvement of spouses, parents, and other
family members in the client's counseling and treatment.

Adult Residential Treatment

This residential facility has been designated a minimum security incar-
ceration facility with a capacity of 27 male and female clients, ages
18 to 35 who have a history of drug dependence. This program is char-
acterized by 24~hour supervision by staff who continuously monitor and
assess the behavior and activities of clients.  No adjudicated clients
are allowed to Teave the ADASI Drug Services facility unless specifically
authorized to do so by court order or unless accompanied by a staff
member.. Services provided at the facility include group and individual
therapy sessions, regular urinalysis, skill training, vocational reha-
bilitation, job placement, physical exercise, and other structured
activities. The rehabilitation goal of the residence is to reintegrate
all residential clients into constructive jobs or education training
which will lead directly to constructive employment. Clients will, in
most cases, be required to exhibit a history of successful employment
and a Jengthy drug-free record before being considered for release.

dJuvenile Residential Treatment

This residential facjlity has been licensed by the Iowa Department of
Social Services as a child care facility with a Ticensed capacity of

16 juvenile males, ages 14 to 18. This program is also characterized

by 24-hour supervision by staff who continuously monitor and assess

the behavior and activities of the clients. This community-based pro-
gram is the first residential treatment facility in Iowa designed
specifically for boys with substance abuse and delinquency problems.
Educational placement and vocational assessment is an integral part of
this treatment program. Client referrals are accepted from juvenile
institutions and from state juvenile parole officers as a reintegration
tool for those boys returning from the state juvenile institutions to
the Jocal community. Individual treatment plans are established for
each boy through close cooperation and communication with the juvenile's
probation or parole officer. Activities of the facility include indi-
vidual and group therapy sessions, family counseling, urinalysis
monitoring, vocational training, physical exercise, recreational activi-
ties, and the developement of personal maturity and decision-making
skills, and ¢ther structured programs.

Specjalized Criminal Justice Services

-. The above services are available to persons who have been adjudicated
or are otherwise involved with the criminal justice system. ADASI
cooperates with the courts and other criminal justice agencies in pro-
viding treatment and other specialized services as a formal stipulation
of parole and probation, as part of a diversionary treatment plan in
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1ieu of incarceration, and/or as part of pre-sentence investigation .
and other diagnostic activities.. Full reporting regarding client -

progress will be provided to authorized criminal justice officials by
ADASI Drug Services personnel through a release of information signed
“by the referred client prior to referral. In addition to the services
described abeove, criminal justice officials may want to make use of the
following specialized services which are available from ADASI Drug
Services. Services include: pre-sentence diagnosis and prognosis
~relative to a client's drug.abuse problem and rehabilitation potential,
physical examinations specifically designed to diagnose drug-related
medical problems, medical/counseling intervention when a client under-
goes withdrawal in another incarceration facility and other services.

G. Urinalysis Screening

Urinalysis screening is conducted by ADASI Drug Services' laboratory
technician to'screen for the presence of the following. drugs: opiates,
cocaine, methadone, barbiturates, amphetamines and non-barbituratc:
depressants. ‘

Treatment Alternatives to Street Crime (TASC)

This program is designed as a referral mechanism for all individuals

who are involved in the criminal justice system and could benefit from
services offered by ADASI Drug Services. The three major components

of the TASC program are the screening intake unit, the tracking and
monitoring unit, and the evaluation unit. The screening intake unit
attempts .to identify all drug abusers entering the criminal justice
system within the state, offer the TASC program to those offenders
Judged eligible according to pre-determined criteria, and recommend
referral to the most suitable treatment program. The tracking and
monitoring unit monitors the treatment progress of TASC clients to
assure that previously established success/failure criteria are utilized
to evaluate client progress. Those individuals violating these

criteria will be returned to the criminal justice system for appropriate
action. The evaluation unit is responsible for evaluating the internal
mechanisms of TASC as well as for ensuring that each client is pro-
vided adequate treatment. . -

Reintegraticn Services
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" Reintegration services are provided by ADASI Drug Services to assist clients

in making a smooth transition from treatment to independent living within

the community. An essential element of successful reintagration for most
clients is a client's ability to secure meaningful employment. Secondly,

a client must feel that the support offered to him through tha services of
ADAST Drug Services are still available upon his return to the.community.
These two concepts compose the fundamental elements of reintegration services.

A. Employment Assistance

The AQA§I Drug Services EARDA pfogram (Emp]oyab?]ity Assistance td
Rehqu]1tated Drug Abqsers) provides job-placement, job seeking skills
training, and on-the-job training to outpatient clients of the ADASI
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Drug Sérvices Central Clinic. - In thip fashion, c]ientﬁiﬁye not only
afforded the opportunity to secure employment, but also~to develop job
skills. In addition, vocational/educational counselors are employed

by both the Drug Services Adult and Juvenile Residences. These persons
provide vocational/educational counseling and assistance in placement.

B. Follow-up Counseling = - |

Follow-up counseling is provided to track the progress of clients as
they re-enter the community and enque that services are made available
if problems arise.’ Follow-up counseling is provided to criminal justice
client$ through the TASC project. Follow-up counseling is provided to
outpatient clients through the Drug:Services Central Clinic follow-up
counselor. - :

The follow-up counselor may make ud’to weekly contacts with clients as
appropriate.” Clients will remain dn follow-up status from one month
to a year. If a c¢lient should have difficulty in the reintegration
process, he may be received again as an active client with the full .
range services available to him/her. .

ALCOHOL SERVICES AYAILABLE

- ADASI Alcohol Services stresses a continufim of care approach to provide services

to persons experiencing alcoholism and alcohol abuse. Progranis are directed
towards assisting clients during all phases of the treatment and rehabilitation
process, Services fall under four generdl catzgories: Education/Prevention,
Outreach/Intervention, Treatment/Rehabilitation, and Reintegration Services.

1. Education/Prevention

Education/Prevention services are provided to disseminate information and
encourage greater public understanding of alcoholism and alcohol abuse.

The consultation component of the program involves a heeds assessment rela-
tive to the requesting agency. This assessment then is developed into a
specialized educational program. Sirvices provided through these programs
may include:

A" Curriculum Development

VA]coﬁBTism curriculums have beén developed for numerous area colleges
and highlschools, including Area XI Junior College (School of Nursing)

and Drake"University, !
e oy

B. - Field P]acemeﬁt Program

Educational Placement experience at ADASI Alcohol Services has been
provided to human service professionals. This program allows first-
hand training and experience ﬂn the area of alcoholism and alcohol
abuse. : o

i
Hl

R e S e i

sy,

BT

 eeaps gt

D.

=
\\

53

Specialized Training/Seminars

*

Seminars’ are developed to provide specialized .training in alcoholism,

and dealing with the alcohotic. Seminars, have been provided to area

teachers and ‘Taw enforcement .of ficials,

Peer Counseling

Peer counseling programs have been developed to educate youth about
alcohol; and to develop decision-making skills.. These youth are then

- trained to assist other youth in developing these same skills.

II. Outreach/Intervention

“The

outreach-program focuses on early identification and fntefvehtion. It

attempts to expedite treatment early. in the disease process. . Outreach
services are provided in an effort to maximize service delivery in the
community. Services include: ’ ‘

A.

Criminal Justice/Misdemeanor Program

ADASI Alcchol Services counselors éoAto‘the city jails on a daily basis.

offering persons arrested for minor alcohol-related offenses, the option
to rece1vQ4treatmentArather than ‘incarceration or fine,

Professional Referral

ADASI Aicohol Services works jointly with satellite offices in surroun-
ding counties to facilitate referrals between appropriate agencies such
as the criminal justice system, mental health agencies, social service
agencies and other referral points. A : . ’

i

duvenile Outreach Program ‘ : - ' .

This program offers any juvehile arrested for an alcohol-related offense

__the opportunity to receive treatment at ADASI. Alcohol Services.

Collateral Services

ADAST Alcohol Services provides counseling, conferences,fétc., to pérsons
(employers, family, etc.) concerned with the alcohol use of a signifi-
cant other. These discussions are directed toward developing appropriate

interventions with an alcohol abuser. {In extreme cases, emergency

. commitments are-available. ) . a

‘Pre-placement Service

ADAST A]cohol'Sérvicés‘pﬁovfdes shdnt¥térm,?structured:1fvih§fafrange-

‘ments-to-persons ‘prior to final placement. For example, if a person

B —

mjght be better served in a nursing home or mental health facility, s/he
will be allowed to stay at ADASI Alcohol Services until other arrange-
ments can be made.

et i b
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IV.  Reintegration Programs

The u]timaie goal for aill ‘ ‘
he u treatment progra is "
:épsigggta:zchscgdf;o$ alcoholism ig agcogiigﬁél
r ed to ensure that the
client re-enters the community. ADASI A1§§§2¥e§§r

continued recovery" i
process, Reinteérét?ggha51
process continues. as the
vices offers both after-
the transition from

Treatment/Rehabilitation

The treatment services offered by ADASI Alcohol Services reflect the great
emphasis placed on continuity of care. A client may utilize any or all care and a
of the following treatment programs, depending on his/her unique needs. treatment 2 array of support servicés to assist in
Major treatment programs include: ; 0 independent Tiving.

A

Aftercare

A. Detoxification
‘ Continus
A?Eg;g?1§gr5?ggggh %he recovery process is-the primary goal of ADASI
designed e ces: o0 that end, a full range of aftercare services
Dhaggned invo1vegg;zgc%};§2§ girt1c1pation, is available. During éhis
Treatmont mecuyeme ol benefﬁc$aencouraggd to continue to utilize those

example, monitored antabuse therapy or marital

ADASI Alcchol Services utilize a social setting detoxification program
with emergency medical care provided by Broadlawns Hospital. Detoxi-
fication is supervised by a physician's assistant provided by Broadlawns
Hospital. The Physician's Assistant is on 24-hour- call. Detoxification
services are generally provided for up to 72 hours, but may be extended

A T T

as dictated by the needs of the individual client.  Admission to the . an im .
rPrlatt S R ms , orta i counselin
detoxification unit is available 24-hours a day, 7 days per week. ) aVai1§b]e 22 gﬁgtc?fe:21ihggﬁgﬁsiﬁe Qg{eggaa1l of ADASI ge?i%cggchg
: re program, however, involve-

ment in AA is strongly encouraged.

ADASI Alcohol Services utilizesa highly structured residential treat- Employment Assistance

ment grogram biyond tﬁe 1EJt1a1 detox}f1cat1gn Pet'wd.f {he program Assistance 1s given to client X - ‘

usually lasts two weeks, however, a longer duration of treatment care and job placement. In i ts both in vocational/educational assessment

is avq11ab1e. Services prov1ded through the inpatient program 1qc]ude: through ADASI 's EARDAH addition, ciients may receive on-the-job traini

on-going evaluation, al¢oholism education, group counseling, individual : 1 clients are provided Program (Sge Drug Services). In this Fashi ining

counseling, AA groups, employment counseling, medical screening and secure more gegx}ngfu?n 0P$ortun1ty to upgrade their job skills ;33,
: employment. ‘

,;‘antabuse therapy.
~ - C. Support Services

i : s - R A ice .
The ADASI Men's Residence provides a. stable, supportive residential ! A?cg;§;°§e£€i§2§ ggpgrtTent of § :
environment for those clients indicating a need for on-going treatment. I, and a P ntral Facility. The office is staffed by a Soci
The Men's Residences is designed to facilitate reintegration as well stamps trapogram Alde, who assist eligible clients in secuniag oo orker
as continue the therapeutic process. The "intermediate care" facility ? nsportation, general relief, and placement
is designed to bridge the gap between intensive treatment and indepen- j )
dent 1iving within the community. Services offered at this faciiity 1
are an extension of those begun during the st#ugtured treatment program. !
3{ 1
|

B. Inpatient Program
B.

C.  Intermediate Care

This program is also available as a treatnen. alternative to the
criminal justice system. - E

T rtiay

B. Qutpatient‘Program

The Outpatient Program offers treatment and rehabilitative services,
while allowing c¢lients to continue to live at. home and f<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>